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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors. I am pleased to 

present you the 2014 Annual Report and Audited 

Financial Statements of Sern Kou Resources Berhad  

(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)  

for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Dear Valued Shareholders,
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Apart from the adverse global economic condition, during the 
period under review, the environment remained challenging 
with the implementation of the minimum wages policy, the rise 
in electricity rate and the reduction in fuel subsidy. These have 
caused the Group’s operating cost under pressure. During the 
financial year under review, the US Dollar appreciated against 
the Ringgit which gave additional advantage to the export sales 
of furniture.

The Group registered a turnover of RM 87 million for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2014, and this represented a decrease of 
17% as compared to RM 104 million in 2013. Notwithstanding 
the lower turnover, the Group recorded loss before tax of  
RM 804,000 and profit after tax of RM 85,000 for the period under 
review compared to loss before tax RM 3.4 million and loss after 
tax of RM 3.9 million as recorded in the previous period. This was 
largely attributed to the higher contribution from the Group’s 
manufacturing segment.

The shareholder’s equity stood at RM 62 million, while the net 
asset per share being RM 0.51 and the Group’s earnings/(losses) 
per share being 0.07 sen during the financial year under review 
compared to RM 62 million, RM 0.51 and (3.26) sen respectively 
recorded during the previous financial year.

FUTURE PROSPECT

The Board is confident and optimistic that the Group will achieve 
commendable earnings in the coming year. The prospect of 
the kiln drying segment will depend on the market price as 
determined by the market demand. Nevertheless, the Group will 
continue to strengthen its overall operations to ensure efficiency 
and will also continue to rationalise our product offerings.

DIVIDEND

No dividend will be declared or paid during the financial year.

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my sincere appreciation to my fellow Board 
members for their support and contributions.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank the management team 
and our employees for their dedication and commitment. I would 
also like to extend my gratitude to our shareholders, financiers, 
business partners, consultants and the relevant approving 
authorities who have cooperated and worked alongside with the 
Group to achieve our mutual goals and vision.

Tan Sri Abdul Rahim bin Mohd Noor
Chairman
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
AS AT 30 JuNE

Year 2009 2010 2012
18 months

2013 2014

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Financial Results

Revenue  93,424  115,015  153,451  104,844  87,049 

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation  (451)  2,369  (4,150)  (3,409)  (805)

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation  (324)  1,900  (4,507)  (3,917)  85 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to owner  (324)  1,900  (4,505)  (3,917)  85 

Financed by

Shareholders’ funds  68,033  69,933  65,429  61,511  61,598 

Net assets  68,033  69,933  65,426  61,511  61,597

Statistics

Earnings/(Loss) per Share (sen) (0.27) 1.58 (3.76) (3.26) 0.07 

Gross Dividend per Share (sen) - - - - -

Net Assets per Share (RM)  0.57  0.58  0.55  0.51  0.51 

2014
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to its Corporate Responsibility to the community, employees, the environment, shareholders and other 
stakeholders. 

The Group continues undertaking the following activities and practices during the year.

COMMUNITy

The Group and its employees took their initiatives in making contribution, and donation and participated in the charity events such as 
fund raising activities to Muar Lions Club, school and local community associations as well as providing practical trainings for university 
students during the financial year.

The Group believes that the supports and encouragement given to the employees of the companies for involvement in the community 
activities would benefit both the community and the Group as a whole.

WORkPLACE

The Group have made its effort to provide high quality work, health and safety environment to our employees as well as the Group’s 
stakeholders.  The Group continues to adhere the industry safety and healthy policy in order to ensure that a safe and healthy working 
environment is provided to the employees of the Group at all times. 

Opportunities were also given to the Group’s employees for attending external and on-the-job training to enhance their skills, 
knowledge and personality. 

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group continues promoting environmentally-conscious work practices in order to reduce environmental impact, enhance energy 
efficiency and to promote recycling wherever possible.  The Group complies with the environmental laws and regulations. 

MARkET PLACE

The Group maintains its commitment to its policy of satisfying customers by conducting its business with integrity and providing them 
with quality products. In addition, its subsidiary companies namely Sern Kou Furniture Industries Sdn. Bhd. and S.K furniture Sdn. Bhd. 
were certified with the ISO9001:2008 quality standard.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

tan sri abDUL rahiM bin MohD noor
(Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director)

TAN SRi ABDUl RAHiM BiN MOHD NOOR, a Malaysian aged 71, was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Chairman 
of SKRB on 14 March 2006. 

He graduated with Bachelor of Economics, University of Malaya in 1968 majoring in economics. He joined the Royal 
Malaysia Police Force as an Assistant Superintendent after a year’s stint with Bank Negara Malaysia and had held various key 
positions before becoming the Inspector General Police of Polis Diraja Malaysia (“IGP”) in 1994. Among the key positions 
he has held were the Chief Police Officer of Selangor, the Commissioner of Police Sabah and the Director of the Special 
Branch and also the Inspector General of Police for Malaysia. Tan Sri Abdul Rahim played a critical role in bringing to the 
peaceful end of the insurgency problem posed by the Communist Party of Malaya when he was heading the Police Special 
Branch. As the IGP, he took a special interest to improve the lot of policemen all over the country by introducing more 
living quarters for their families and improving their welfare and salary schemes which he considered as necessary to 
improve police service. Since his retirement in 1999, he runs his own family business apart from joining a few companies. 
His other directorships include MWE Advanced Structure Sdn Bhd and Quasar Industrial Vehicles Sdn Bhd (both of which 
are subsidiaries of MWE Holdings Berhad, a listed company on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad) as well as Nico Security 
Systems Sdn Bhd and Ridayu Corporation Sdn Bhd. 

DatUK Dr haris bin haJi saLLeh
(Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)

DATUK DR HARiS BiN HAji SAllEH, a Malaysian aged 66, was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of SKRB 
on 18 December 2003. 

He graduated with a medical degree from the University of Malaya in 1975 and subsequently obtained his membership in 
the Royal College of Obstetricians & Gynecologists, London, in 1982. He joined Kuala Lumpur Hospital as a Medical Officer 
in 1976 and later joined Angkatan Tentera Malaysia (“ATM”) in 1977 as a Medical Officer with the rank of Captain. He left 
ATM in 1979 and joined Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia as a lecturer in the Medical Faculty. He currently has his own 
private clinic and is practicing in Muar. 

As a board member of SKRB and a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,  
he participated actively in all the committee meetings towards the future improvements of the Company. 

Koh KUn ChUan
(Managing Director)

KOH KUN CHUAN, a Malaysian aged 54, was appointed as Director of SKRB on 18 December 2003. He was then appointed 
the Managing Director of SKRB on 23 April 2004.

He is one of the founders of the SKRB Group and has in-depth knowledge of the furniture industry via his involvement in 
the industry for the past 21 years. As an Executive Director and Group Managing Director of SKRB, he is mainly responsible 
for setting and reviewing the operations strategy and succession plans of the SKRB Group, evaluating and monitoring the 
SKRB Group’s performance goals and management of risk. Under his vision and leadership, the SKRB Group has grown into 
a reputable furniture exporter and manufacturer. 
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

LoW Peng sian @ ChUa Peng sian 
(Chief Operating Officer / Executive Director)

lOW PENG SiAN @ CHUA PENG SiAN, a Malaysian aged 46, was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer / Executive Director 
of SKRB on 17 November 2009. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Risk Management Committee.

He has extensive experience in running logging and saw milling, wholesale and trading in sawn timber, tropical hardwood 
and rubber wood as well as trading in hardware and building materials for the past 25 years. He is currently a director of 
Kiang Lee Timber (M) Sdn Bhd, CPS Resources Sdn Bhd, Proactive Wealth Assets Sdn Bhd, Total Modern Development Sdn 
Bhd, Alloy & Metal Industry Sdn Bhd and he is also founder and director of Pelangi Technowood Sdn Bhd and Soon Hua Hang 
Timber (M) Sdn Bhd.

As the Chief Operating Officer of the Company, his responsibilities are to ensure and maintain efficient and effective 
management of the Group’s operations and resources.

 

Dr tan Chee hUat
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

DR TAN CHEE HUAT, a Malaysian aged 63, was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of SKRB on 18 December 
2003. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination 
Committee and Risk Management Committee. 

He obtained his professional qualification from the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK in 1986. He joined 
Ivan Sopher & Co., UK in 1980 as an Audit Trainee and later joined Kramers of London, UK in 1983 as an Audit Supervisor. 
He was attached to TY & Associates, Petaling Jaya, from 1986 to 1988 as a Senior Audit Supervisor. In 1989, he set up Lee 
& Tan Associates and is currently a partner of the firm. He went on to pursue his higher education and obtained a Doctor 
of Commerce degree from the Irish Business School, UK in 2000. He is presently a member of the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Chartered Tax Institute of 
Malaysia.

DatUK taY PUaY ChUan
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

TAY PUAY CHUAN, a Malaysian aged 50 was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of SKRB on 18 December 
2003. He is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee as well as a member of Audit Committee.

He started his career with the Polis Diraja Malaysia, Bukit Aman in 1987 and later left the police force as an Inspector in 1992. 
He joined Fajar Sawmill Sdn Bhd in 1992 as a Factory Manager and later left to join Syarikat Teong Sheng Sdn Bhd in 1994, 
also as a Factory Manager until 1997. In 1997, he graduated with a Bachelor of Law (Honours) degree from the University of 
London. He was called to the Malaysian Bar and admitted as an Advocate and Solicitors in 1998. He was attached to Fadzilah, 
Ong Chee Seong & Associates from 1998 to 2003 until he set up his own legal practice, Tay Puay Chuan & Co. in Muar, Johor 
Darul Takzim in 2003.

He is also the Independent Non-Executive Director of Guan Chong Berhad and Homeritz Corporation Berhad.
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Notes to Directors’ profile:

1. Family Relationships
 None of the Directors have any family relationship with any Director 

and/or major shareholders of the Company.

2. Conflict of Interest
 None of the Directors have any conflict of interest with the 

Company.

3. Conviction of Offences
 None of the Directors have any conviction for offences other than 

traffic offences within the past 10 years.

4. Attendances at Board Meetings
 The details of the Directors’ attendance at Board Meetings are set 

out on page 33 of this Annual Report.

5. Shareholdings
 The details of the Directors’ interest in the securities of the Company 

and its subsidiaries are set out on page 114 of this Annual Report.

6. Directorship in other public companies
 Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors hold any 

directorship in public companies.

LeoU thiaM Lai 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

lEOU THiAM lAi, a Malaysian aged 58, was appointed the Independent Non-Executive Director of SKRB on 19 October 
2010. He is a Member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. 
 
He is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, a Fellow of the Chartered Association 
of Certified Accountants (UK) and a Fellow of the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia. He was with Aljeffri, Siva, Heng and 
Monteiro from 1980 to 1981 and Baharom Hamdan from 1981 to 1984. He then set up his own Chartered Accountants firm,
Leou & Associates, in 1988. Currently, he also sits on the Board of Degem Berhad.

Loo eng hUa 
(Executive Director)

lOO ENG HUA, a Malaysian aged 50, was appointed the Executive Director of SKRB on 19 October 2010. 

He is a Chartered Accountant and Certified Public Accountant. He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the 
Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was with Coorpers & Lybrand (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) 
from 1990 to 1994 and later joined Harbin Roxy (Hong Kong) Entertainment City Ltd in 1994 as a Finance Manager and later 
left to join Kemayan Construction Sdn Bhd (KCSB) in 1995, as Group Financial Controller until 1998. He then left KCSB and 
joined Parit Perak Holding Bhd, as a Senior General Manager until 2001. He joined Jutajaya Holdings Bhd as Chief Executive 
Officer / Managing Director from 2002 to 2003 and then joined GM Build Sdn Bhd (GMB) as Chief Financial Officer and 
promoted to Chief Executive Officer. He left GMB Group in 2008.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

boarD of DireCtors

Tan Sri Abdul Rahim Bin Mohd Noor
Chairman / Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Dr Haris Bin Haji Salleh
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Koh Kun Chuan
Managing Director

low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian
Chief Operating Officer/Executive Director

Dr Tan Chee Huat
Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Tay Puay Chuan
Independent Non-Executive Director

leou Thiam lai
Independent Non-Executive Director
 
loo Eng Hua
Executive Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr Tan Chee Huat
Chairman / 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Dr Haris Bin Haji Salleh
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Tay Puay Chuan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Leou Thiam Lai
Independent Non-Executive Director

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tay Puay Chuan - Chairman
Dr Tan Chee Huat
Datuk Dr Haris Bin Hj Salleh 
Leou Thiam Lai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian - Chairman
Datuk Dr Haris Bin Hj Salleh
Dr Tan Chee Huat
Leou Thiam Lai

RISk MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian - Chairman
Dr Tan Chee Huat

ChartereD seCretaries

Lim Lee Kuan (MAICSA 7017753)
Soo Shiow Fang (MAICSA 7044946)

  
REGISTERED OFFICE

Lot PTD 6019 (Lot 8804)
Jalan Perindustrian 1
Kawasan Perindustrian Bukit Bakri
Mukim Bakri 84200 Muar
Johor Darul Takzim
Telephone No. : 606.986.5562
Facsimile No. : 606.986.5569
Email : sernkou@sernkou.com 

share registrar

Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bhd
Level 6, Symphony House
Block D13, Pusat Dagangan Dana 1
Jalan PJU 1A/46
47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan 
Telephone No. : 603.7841.8000
Facsimile No. : 603.7841.8008

PrinCiPaL banKers

HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad
Malayan Banking Berhad
CIMB Bank Berhad 

AUDITORS

BDO (AF 0206)
Chartered Accountants
Suite 18-04, Level 18
Menara Zurich
15 Jalan Dato’ Abdullah Tahir
80300 Johor Bahru 
Telephone No. : 607.331.9815
Facsimile No. : 607.331.9817

stoCK exChange

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Main Market
Stock Name  : SERNKOU
Stock Code   : 7180
Sector : Consumer Products

SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD (519103-X)12





SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD (519103-X)14

NOTICE OF ANNuAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD (“Company” or “SKRB”) will be 
held at Classic Hotel, No. 69, Jalan Ali, 84000 Muar, Johor Darul Takzim on Thursday, 27 November 2014 at 11.00 a.m. for the following 
purposes:-

1. To receive the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 together with the Reports of the Directors 
and Auditors thereon. (Please refer to Note A)

2. To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with Article 128 of the Articles of Association of the Company: 

 i) Dr Tan Chee Huat;  (Ordinary Resolution 1)
 ii) Leou Thiam Lai; and (Ordinary Resolution 2)
 iii) Loo Eng Hua (Ordinary Resolution 3)

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees amounting to RM287,100.00 for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. 
   (Ordinary Resolution 4)

4. To re-appoint Messrs BDO (AF 0206) as Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.
   (Ordinary Resolution 5)

Special Business
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without modification:

5. Ordinary Resolution
 - Authority to issue Shares 
 
 “THAT subject always to the Companies Act, 1965, Articles of Association of the Company and approvals from Bursa Malaysia 

Securities Berhad and any other governmental/regulatory bodies, where such approval is necessary, authority be and is hereby 
given to the Directors pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 to issue not more than ten percent (10%) of the 
issued capital of the Company at any time upon any such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may in 
their absolute discretion deem fit or in pursuance of offers, agreements or options to be made or granted by the Directors while 
this approval is in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company and that the Directors be and 
are hereby further authorised to make or grant offers, agreements or options which would or might require shares to be issued 
after the expiration of the approval hereof.”

   (Ordinary Resolution 6)

6. Ordinary Resolution
 - Continuing in Office As independent Non-Executive Directors
 

(i) “THAT authority be and is hereby given to Datuk Dr Haris Bin Hj Salleh, who has served as Independent Non-Executive 
Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than 9 years, to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive 
Director of the Company.” (Ordinary Resolution 7) 

(ii) “THAT authority be and is hereby given to Datuk Tay Puay Chuan, who has served as Independent Non-Executive Director 
of the Company for a cumulative term of more than 9 years, to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director of 
the Company.” (Ordinary Resolution 8) 

(iii) “THAT subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 1, authority be and is hereby given to Dr Tan Chee Huat, who has 
served as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than 9 years, to continue to 
act as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.” (Ordinary Resolution 9) 
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7. Ordinary Resolution
 - Re-appointment of Director Pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 1965
 
 “That pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 1965, Tan Sri Abdul Rahim Bin Mohd Noor be and is hereby re-appointed as 

Director of the Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.” (Ordinary Resolution 10)

8. To transact any other business for which due notice has been given.
 
By Order of the Board

LIM LEE KUAN (MAICSA 7017753)
SOO SHIOW FANG (MAICSA 7044946)
Chartered Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
5 November 2014

Notes:

Note A: This item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 169(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 does not require a formal 
approval of the shareholders and hence, is not put forward for voting.

(1) A member may appoint only one (1) proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy may but need not be a member of the 
Company. If the proxy is not a member, he need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the 
Registrar of Companies. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy.

(2) Where a Member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 
1991 it may appoint only one (1) proxy in respect of each Securities Account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company 
standing to the credit of the said Securities Account.

(3) Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple 
beneficial owners in one securities accounts (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt 
authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. If a Member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the 
appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holding to be represented by each proxy.

(4) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing executed under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised 
in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under the corporation’s seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly 
authorised.

(5) The instrument appointing a proxy, with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially 
certified or office copy of such power or authority, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot PTD 6019 
(Lot 8804), Jalan Perindustrian 1, Kawasan Perindustrian Bukit Bakri, Mukim Bakri, 84200 Muar, Johor Darul Takzim not less than 
forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting as the case may be.

(6) The Date of Record of Depositors for the purpose of determining Members’ entitlement to attend, vote and speak at the Meeting 
is 21 November 2014.
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Explanatory Notes to Special Business:

(i) Ordinary Resolution 6
 Authority to issue Shares 

 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 6, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of this Annual General Meeting, to allot 
and issue up to a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being (other than bonus or rights 
issue) for such purposes as they consider would be in the best interest of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied 
at a general meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

 The rationale for this general mandate is to eliminate the need to convene general meeting(s) from time to time to seek 
shareholders’ approval as and when the Company issues new shares for future business opportunities and thereby reducing 
administrative time and cost associated with the convening of such meeting(s). The general mandate will provide flexibility to 
the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including but not limited to further placement of shares, for the purpose of 
future investment projects(s), working capital, repayment of borrowings and/or acquisition. 

 This is the renewal of the mandate obtained from the shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting held on 28 November 2013 
(“the Previous Mandate”). The Previous Mandate was not utilised and no proceeds were raised. 

 
(ii) Ordinary Resolutions 7 to 9
 Continuing in Office as independent Non-Executive Directors

 The Nomination Committee and the Board of Directors have assessed the independence of Datuk Dr Haris Bin Hj Salleh, Datuk Tay 
Puay Chuan and Dr Tan Chee Huat, who have served as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company for a cumulative 
term of more than 9 years, and recommended them to continue acting as the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company based on the following justifications:-

a) they fulfilled the criteria under the definition of Independent Director as stated in the Main Market Listing Requirements 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, and thus, they would be able to provide a check and balance and bring an element of 
objectivity to the Board;

b) they are familiar with the Company’s business operations and are able to advise the Board diligently;
c) they have devoted sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations for informed and balanced decision 

making by actively participated in Board discussion and provided an independent voice to the Board; and
d) they have exercised their due care during their tenure as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company and carried 

out their professional duties in the best interest of the Company and shareholders.

(iii) Ordinary Resolution 10
 Re-appointment of Directors Pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 1965

 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 10, if passed, will allow the director who is over the age 70 years to be re-appointed as director 
of public company pursuant to Section129 of the Companies Act, 1965.

 A vote by the majority of not less than three-fourths of members who are entitled to vote and voting in person or by proxy is 
required to pass this resolution.

NOTICE OF ANNuAL GENERAL MEETING
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AuDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Board of Directors (“the Board) of Sern Kou Resources Berhad (“the Company”) is pleased to present the Audit Committee (“the AC”) 
Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

The members of the Committee are as follows: 

Chairman
Dr Tan Chee Huat - Independent Non-Executive Director

Member
Datuk Tay Puay Chuan - Independent Non-Executive Director
Datuk Dr Haris Bin Hj Salleh – Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Leou Thiam Lai - Independent Non-Executive Director

AUDiT COMMiTTEE MEETiNGS

The AC met five (5) times during the financial year ended 30 June 2014. The details of their attendance at meetings are as follows:

Name of Members No. of Meetings Attended Percentage (%)

Dr Tan Chee Huat 5/5 100
Tay Puay Chuan  5/5 100
Datuk Dr Haris Bin Hj Salleh 4/5 80
Leou Thiam Lai  5/5 100

The Group’s external auditors, internal auditors and certain designated members of senior management also attended the meetings 
at the invitation of the Chairman of the AC. The AC shall meet with the external auditors on separate sessions without the presence of 
management, whenever deemed necessary and at least twice a year.

SUMMARY OF TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Composition 

The Committee shall comprise no fewer than three (3) members, a majority of whom shall be independent directors and all members 
should be non-executive directors. At least one (1) member must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Chairman

The Chairman, who shall be elected by the Committee, shall be an independent director. 

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible, in conjunction with the Chairman, for drawing 
up the agenda and circulating it prior to each meeting.
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Meetings of the Committee

The Committee shall meet at least four (4) times in each financial year and may regulate its own procedure in lieu of convening a formal 
meeting by means of video or teleconference. The quorum for a meeting shall be two (2) members, provided that the majority of 
members present at the meeting shall be independent.

All decisions at such meeting shall be decided on a show of hands on a majority of votes and that the Chairman shall have the casting 
vote should a tie arise.

The Committee is allowed to exercise control on routine matters that require the Committee’s recommendation through the disseminate 
of Committee Circular Resolution. 

Rights

In conducting its duties and responsibilities, the Audit Committee shall have the authority to investigate any matter within its terms of 
reference and to seek full and unrestricted access to information, records and documents relevant to the Group and seek any information 
it requires from any employee. It shall also have direct communication channels with the External and Internal Auditors, as well as have 
the authority to engage, consult and obtain independent professional advice whenever it deems fits and able to secure the attendance 
of other Directors, employees and outsiders with relevant experience and expertise for consultation if it considers necessary.

The Committee shall promptly report to the Bursa Securities or such other name(s) as may be adopted by the Exchange, matters which 
have not been satisfactorily resolved by the Board of Directors resulting in a breach of the listing requirements.

Duties 

The duties and responsibilities of the Committee shall be:

(a) To review with the external auditors on the audit plan, its scope and nature the audit report, the results of their evaluation of the 
accounting policies and systems of internal accounting controls within the Group and the assistance given by the officers of the 
Company to external auditors during the audit.

(b) To review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources and setting of performance standards of the internal 
audit function.

(c) To recommend measures to be taken by the Board of Directors on the effectiveness of the system of internal controls and risk 
management practices of the Group.

(d) To review the internal audit programme, processes the results of the internal audit programme, processes or investigation 
undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function. 

(e) To discuss problems and reservations arising from interim and final audits, and any matter the auditor may wish to discuss (in the 
absence of management where necessary).

(f ) To monitor related party transactions and to review conflict of interest that may arise within the Company or the Group.

(g) To review the quarterly reports on consolidated results and annual financial statements prior to submission to the Board of 
Directors.

(h) To consider the appointment and / or re-appointment of auditors, the audit fee and any questions of resignation or dismissal of 
auditors.
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SUMMARY OF ACTiViTiES OF THE AUDiT COMMiTTEE

In accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, the following activities were undertaken by the Audit Committee 
during the financial year ended 30 June 2014, including the deliberation on and review of:

a) the audit plan of the external auditors in terms of their scope of the audit prior to their commencement of their annual audit; 

b) their audit reports on the results of the audit together with the recommendations and management’s response set out in the 
management letter with the external auditors; matters arising from the audit of the Group in meetings with the external auditors 
without presence of the executive Board members and management;

c) the unaudited quarterly financial statements during the financial year before the approval of the Board for their consideration 
and approval prior to the release to Bursa Securities;

d) the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company with the external auditors before tabling to the Board for their 
consideration and approval;  

e) the co-operation and assistance given by the officers of the Company to the external auditors;

f ) the performance of external and internal auditors and their audit fees and to recommend to the Board on the re-appointment of 
the external auditors;

g) the internal audit plan prepared by the Internal Audit function;

h) the internal audit reports, recommendations made, Management’s response to these recommendations and held proactive 
engagement with Management for effective two-way communication on any concerns raised by Management;

i) the corrective actions on outstanding audit issues to ensure all the control lapses have been addressed and rectified; and

j) any related party transactions entered into by the Company and the Group and considered conflict of interest situations that  
may arise.  

SUMMARY OF ACTiTiViTiES OF THE iNTERNAl AUDiT FUNCTiONS 

The Group’s internal audit function is outsourced to a professional firm. The outsourced internal auditors assist the Board via the 
Committee in providing independent assessment of the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. 
They report directly to the Committee. 

The scope of review of the outsourced internal audit function is determined and approved by the Committee with feedback from 
Management. During the financial year under review, the outsourced internal audit function carried out reviews in accordance with the 
audit plan approved by the Committee. 

During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, the activities performed by the outsourced internal audit function include:

(a) Conducting regular reviews of business processes in accordance with the internal audit plan approved by the Committee;

(b) Reporting the results of the internal audit reviews and making recommendations for improvement to the Committee on a 
periodic basis; and

(c) Follow-up on the implementation of audit recommendations and action plans agreed upon by Management. 

The internal audits conducted did not detect any weakness which would result in material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that 
would require disclosure in the Annual Report.  

This report is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 28 October 2014.
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iNTRODUCTiON

The primary objective of the Company’s Board Charter is to set out the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Sern 
Kou Resources Berhad (“the Board”).

The Board, whilst supportive of Management, must:-
a. approve and proactively participate in strategic decisions.
b. challenge management with questions based on informed knowledge;
c. oversee management’s plans, decisions, and actions;
d. monitor management’s ethical conduct, financial reporting and regulatory compliance;
e. play a critical role in ensuring sound and prudent policies and practices of the Company;
f. be capable of effectively achieving good governance and protecting the interests of shareholders; and
g. proactively support and have continuous oversight over risk management, internal controls and compliance matters involving 

the Company.

The Board will regularly review this charter and the terms of reference of Board Committees to ensure they remain consistent with the 
Board’s objectives and responsibilities, and relevant laws, regulations, guidelines and standards of corporate governance.

BOARD SizE AND COMPOSiTiON

a. The Board should comprise individuals with character, experience, integrity, competence and time to effectively discharge their 
role as company director. The composition and size of the Board is such that it facilitates the making of informed and critical 
decisions.

b. The number of directors shall not be less than two (2) and not more than twelve (12). The appointment of directors shall be 
recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved by the Board.

c. At any one time, at least two or one-third (1/3), whichever is higher, of the Board members are independent directors. The Board 
may appoint a senior independent director to whom shareholders’ concerns can be conveyed if there are reasons that contact 
through the normal channels of the chairman or the managing director have failed to resolve them. 

d. The Board shall appoint an independent director as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

e. The positions of chairman of the Board and Managing Director (“MD”) should be held by different individuals, and the chairman 
must be a non-executive member of the Board. The Board must comprise a majority of independent directors where the chairman 
of the Board is not an independent director. 

 In the event that the positions of chairman of the Board and managing director are held by the same person, the Company shall 
provide explanation and justification in the Annual Report of the Company.

f. The Board endeavours to appoint female directors by 2016. The Board through its Nomination Committee should take steps to 
ensure that female candidates are sought as part of the recruitment exercise.

BOARD CHARTER
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POSiTiON DESCRiPTiON

Chairman

The Chairman should: 
a. ensure the smooth functioning of the Board;
b. act as facilitator at meetings of the Board to ensure that no directors, whether executive or non-executive, dominate discussion, 

that appropriate discussion takes place and that relevant opinion among directors is forthcoming;
c. inculcate positive culture in the Board;
d. ensure that all relevant issues are on agenda for Board meeting and all directors are able to participate fully in the Board’s 

activities;
e. ensure that the Board debates strategic and critical issues; and
f. ensure that the Board receives the necessary information on a timely basis from Management.

The Chairman will have no casting vote if two (2) directors form a quorum, or if there are only two (2) directors competent to vote on 
the question at issue.

The MD should: 
a. be persons of high professional and integrity;
b. directly responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Company;
c. familiar with the Company’s performance, the adequacy of internal controls, risk management and compliance with legal 

requirements as well as current matters and policies;
d. devote full attention and time to their duties and responsibilities and be able to direct and supervise the Company effectively and 

responsibly; and
e. at all times exercise professional skill, due care and diligence when performing his functions, exercising their powers or discharging 

his duties.

The key roles of a CEO, amongst others, include: 
a. developing the strategic direction of the Company;
b. ensuring that the Board’s decisions are implemented and the Board’s directions are responded to;
c. providing directions in the implementation of short and long-term business plans; 
d. providing strong leadership; i.e. effectively communicating a vision, management philosophy and business strategy to the 

employees;
e. keeping the Board fully informed of all important aspects of the Company’s operations and ensuring sufficient information is 

distributed to the Board members; and
f. ensuring day-to-day business affairs of the Company are effectively managed.

In the absence of its MD, the executive director who is fully acquainted with the Company’s affairs, is the person who will be directly 
responsible for the overall running of the Company.

independent Director

An independent director should declare to the Company annually that he complies with the criteria as stated below. 

He/She is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship, which could interfere with the exercise of 
independent judgement or the ability to act in the best interest of the Company and: 

a. is not an executive director of the Company or any related corporation of the Company;
b. has not been within the last 2 years and is not an officer (except as a non-executive director) of the Company;
c. is not a major shareholder of the Company;
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d. is not a family member of any executive director, officer or major shareholder of the Company;
e. is not acting as a nominee or representative of any executive director or major shareholder of the Company;
f. has not been engaged as an adviser by the Company under such circumstances as prescribed by the Exchange or is not presently 

a partner, director (except as an independent director) or major shareholder, as the case may be, of a firm or corporation which 
provides professional advisory services to the Company under such circumstances as prescribed by the Exchange; or

g. has not engaged in any transaction with the Company under such circumstances as prescribed by the Exchange or is not presently 
a partner, director or major shareholder, as the case may be, of a firm or corporation (other than subsidiaries of the applicant or 
the listed corporation) which has engaged in any transaction with the Company under such circumstances as prescribed by the 
Exchange.

An independent director should: 
a. provide and enhance the necessary independence and objectivity to the Board;
b. ensure effective checks and balances on the Board;
c. to mitigate any possible conflict of interest between the policy-making process and the day-to-day management of the 

Company;
d. constructively challenge and contribute to the development of business strategy and direction of the Company; and
e. to ensure that adequate systems and controls to safeguard the interests of the Company are in place.
 

BOARD APPOiNTMENT

Nomination

The Company should ensure that the directors and the MD are of high calibre, sound judgment, high integrity and credibility as they 
are entrusted by the shareholders to manage and perform effectively.

All nominations of candidates for the positions of directors and MD must be submitted to the Nomination Committee for consideration 
and recommending the candidates to the Board for approval:-

Age limit
•	 In	accordance	with	the	Malaysian	Companies	Act	1965.

Work Experience
•	 5	years	or	more	preferably	in	relevant	industry.
•	 Have	been	in	senior	management	position.
•	 Good	track	record	of	managing	a	successful	and	profitable	organisation.

Qualifications
Degree, Professional qualification or equivalent or with the requisite years of relevant work experience

Personal Background
a. A person of good character and high integrity and credibility.
b. Not a bankrupt and has never been engaged in deceitful/oppressive/improper business practices.
c. Has not been engaged/associated or had conducted himself/herself in a manner which may case doubt on his fitness, competence 

and soundness of judgment.
d. Has not contravened any provision made by or under any written law to be designed for protecting members of the public 

against financial loss due to dishonesty, incompetence or malpractice.
e. Have not been convicted whether within or outside Malaysia of any offence.
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Directorship
Shall hold not more than 5 directorships in listed companies.

Directors should notify the Chairman of the Board before accepting any new directorship, including an indication of time that will be 
spent on the new appointment.

All nominations of candidates for the positions of directors and MD must be submitted to the Nomination Committee for 
consideration.

Re-election
All directors are subject to retirement by rotation.

Retention/Re-designation of an independent director with cumulative term of more than nine (9) years
The tenure of an independent director should not exceed a cumulative term of nine (9) years. Upon completion of the nine (9) years, an 
independent director may continue to serve on the Board subject to the director’s re-designation as a non-independent director. The 
Board, upon recommendation of the Nomination Committee, shall justify and seek shareholders’ approval in the event that it desires to 
retain a person who has served in that capacity for more than nine years as an independent director.

Further, the long serving director is required to declare to the Company annually that he complies with the criteria to continue acting 
as an independent director. 

BOARD RESPONSiBiliTiES

The Board should assume, amongst others, the following responsibilities:
a. Reviewing the code of conduct of the Company and implementing appropriate internal systems to support, promote and ensure 

its compliance;
b. Reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Company;
c. Regularly evaluating economic, environmental, social and governance issues and any other relevant external matters that may 

influence or affect the development of the business or the interests of the shareholders in ensuring that the Company’s strategies 
promote sustainability;

d. Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is being properly managed;
e. Reviewing, ratifying and monitoring systems of risk management and internal control and ethical and legal compliance. This 

includes establishing sound risk management framework, reviewing procedures to identify the main risks associated with the 
Company’s businesses and the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks;

f. Selecting, appointing and evaluating from time to time the performance of, and planning succession of the MD under the 
guidance of the Nominating Committee;

g. Reviewing the procedures for appointment of senior management and ensuring that succession planning of the senior 
management is in place;

h. Establishing an internal audit function which reports directly to the Audit Committee;
i. Promoting effective communication and proactive engagements within shareholders and other stakeholders;
j. Ensuring there is a sound framework of reporting on internal controls and regulatory compliance;
k. Ensuring its members have access to information, advice and appropriate continuing education programmes;
l. Reviewing and approving formal and transparent remuneration policies and procedures to attract and retain directors;
m. Ensuring there is appropriate corporate disclosure policies procedures;
n. Encouraging the usage of information technology in communicating with stakeholders;
o. Taking reasonable steps in encouraging the shareholders’ participation and voting by poll at general meetings of the Company;
p. Promoting effective communication and proactive engagements with shareholders; and
q. Undertaking an assessment of the independent directors annually.
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BOARD/MANAGEMENT AUTHORiTiES

The Board shall have the authority to approve transactions or activities which are beyond the individual discretionary powers of senior 
officers or management committees delegated by the Board as per the Approving Authority limits stipulated in the relevant policy 
manuals of respective operating units subject to the provision of the Articles of Association of the Company.

BOARD COMMiTTEES

The Board should establish and delegate certain duties to specialised Board Committees to oversee critical or major functional areas 
and to address matters, which require detailed review or in-depth consideration before tabling its recommendation to the Board.

The Board has established the following Board Committees which operate within their specific terms of reference:- 

(i)  Nomination Committee 
To provide a formal and transparent procedures for the appointment of directors as well as annual assessment of effectiveness of 
individual directors, Board Committees and Board as a whole and key senior management officers.

(ii) Remuneration Committee 
To provide a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy for directors and key senior management 
officers, and ensuring that compensation is competitive and consistent with the Company’s culture, objectives and strategy.

(iii)  Audit Committee 
To provide independent oversight of the Company’s financial reporting and internal control system and ensure checks and 
balances within the Company, and to ensure financial statements comply with applicable financial reporting standards.

 To review and assess the suitability and independence of external auditors.

Duties and functions of the above-mentioned committees are provided in their respective terms of reference.

BOARD PROCEDURES

a. The conduct of directors will be consistent with their duties and responsibilities to the Company and, indirectly, to the shareholders. 
The Board will always act within any limitations imposed by the provisions of relevant laws and guidelines on its activities;

b. Directors will use their best endeavours to attend Board meetings. Directors are expected to participate fully, and constructively 
in Board discussions and other activities and to bring the benefit of their particular knowledge, skills and abilities to the Board;

c. Directors who are not able to attend a meeting will advise the Chairman at an earlier date as possible and confirm in writing to 
the Secretary;

d. Board discussions will be open and constructive, recognising that genuinely held differences of opinion could bring greater 
clarity and lead to better decisions. The Chairman will, nevertheless, seek a consensus of the Board but may, where considered 
necessary, call for a vote;

e. All discussions and their record will remain confidential unless there is a specific direction from the Board to the contrary, or 
disclosure is required by law. Subject to legal and regulatory requirements, the Board will decide the manner and timing of the 
publication of its decisions;

f. Directors are expected to strictly observe confidentiality of the Company’s information; and
g. Directors are required to inform the Board of conflicts or potential conflict of interest that may have in relation to particular items 

of business or transaction. Subject to provisions of relevant laws and guidelines, these Directors shall abstain from deliberation 
and determination of those matters.
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AUTHORiTY

The Board shall within its terms of reference:
a. have complete, adequate and timely information prior to Board meetings and on an ongoing basis;
b. have the resources required to perform its duties;
c. have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company;
d. have the authority to form management / sub-committee(s) if deemed necessary and fit;
e. have the authority to delegate any of its responsibilities to any person or committee(s) that is deemed fit;
f. have direct communication channels with employees, senior management personnel and relevant external parties; and
g. be able to obtain independent professional or other advice.

MEETiNGS AND MiNUTES

Subject to relevant laws and guidelines, the following should be observed by the Board:-
a. the Board shall meet on a quarterly basis, but in any event, no less than once in every three (3) months, or whenever deemed 

necessary;
b. individual directors must attend at least 50% of the Board meetings held in each financial year or such other percentage as may 

be prescribed by the Listing Requirements;
c. the quorum of the meetings shall be met pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company;
d. the Board is also allowed to carry out the resolution by way of circulation;
e. the participation of the director can be facilitated by means of video or telephone conferencing;
f. Head of the respective division units and relevant management personnel may be invited to attend the Board meetings;
g. The Company Secretary shall be appointed as Secretary of the Board Meeting and minutes of meetings shall be taken and 

documented; and
h. Information should be supplied to the directors at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting in order for them to discharge their 

duties.

REMUNERATiON OF DiRECTORS

a. The Company aims to set remuneration at levels which are sufficient to attract and retain the Directors needed to run the Company 
successfully, taking into consideration all relevant factors including the function, workload and responsibilities involved, but 
without paying more than is necessary to achieve this goal.

b. The level of remuneration for the executive directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee after giving due consideration 
to the compensation levels for comparable positions among other similar industry.

c. Non-executive directors are entitled to participate in the Company’s Share Issuance Scheme subject to approval at a general 
meeting. Non-executive directors who participated in the Share Issuance Scheme are prohibited to sell, transfer or assign the 
shares within one (1) year from the date of offer of such options.

d. No director other than executive directors shall have a service contract with the Company.
e. A formal independent review of the directors’ remuneration is undertaken no less frequently than once every three (3) years.

BENEFiCiAl iNFlUENCE ON COMMUNiTY

The Board has a continuing responsibility to the community to ensure that the Company’s activities are conducive towards promoting 
the economic well-being of its community and are in line with government’s economic objectives.
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iNTRODUCTiON

The Board of Directors of Sern Kou Resources Berhad (“the Company” or “SKRB”) is committed to cultivating a responsible 
organisation by instilling corporate conscience through excellence in corporate governance (“CG”) standards at all times. This 
includes accountability and transparency which is observed throughout the Group as a fundamental part of building a sustainable 
business and discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholder value and the financial performance of the Group. 
The Board is pleased to report on how the Company and the Group have applied the principles set out in the Malaysian Code on 
Corporate Governance 2012 (“MCCG 2012”). 

1. ESTABliSH ClEAR ROlES AND RESPONSiBiliTiES

 1.1 Clear functions of the Board and those delegated to Management

The Board is responsible for formulating and reviewing the strategic plans and key policies of the Company, and charting 
the course of the Group’s business operations whilst providing effective oversight of Management’s performance, risk 
assessment and controls over business operations.

The Board delegates and confers its authorities and discretion on the Chairman, Executive Directors, and Management as 
well as on properly constituted Board Committees comprising mainly/exclusively Non-Executive Directors.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director (“MD”). The 
Chairman leads strategic planning at the Board level, while the Executive Directors are responsible for the implementation 
of the policies laid down and executive decision-making.

The role of Management is to support the Executive Directors and implement the running of the general operations and 
financial business of the Company, in accordance with the delegated authority of the Board.

In addition, the Board is directly responsible for decision making in respect of the following matters:
a.  appointment of directors and key management personnel;
b.  announcements including approval and releases of financial results and annual reports;
c.  business strategy including significant acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries or assets or liabilities;
d. operating budgets, significant investments and capital expenditures; and
e.  corporate policies with good corporate governance and business practices.

The Board Committees are made up of the Audit Committee (“AC”), Nomination Committee (“NC”), Remuneration Committee 
(“RC”) and Risk Management Committee; and are entrusted with specific responsibilities to oversee the Group’s affairs, with 
authority to act on behalf of the Board in accordance with their respective Terms of Reference. At each Board meeting, 
minutes of the Board Committee meetings are presented to keep the Board informed. The Chairman of the relevant Board 
Committees also reports to the Board on key issues deliberated by the Board Committees at their respective meetings.

In general, the Non-Executive Directors are independent of Management. Their roles are to constructively challenge 
Management and monitor the success of Management in delivering the approved targets and business plans within the 
risk appetite set by the Board. They have free and open contact with Management at all levels, and they engage with the 
external and internal auditors to address matters concerning Management and oversight of the Company’s business and 
operations.
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 1.2 Clear roles and responsibilities in discharging fiduciary and leadership functions

The Board has discharged its responsibilities in the best interests of the Company. The following are among the key 
responsibilities of the Board:

(a) Reviewing and adopting the Company’s strategic plans
The Board has in place a strategy planning process, whereby the MD presents to the Board its recommended strategy 
annually, together with the proposed business plans for the ensuing year for the Board’s review and approval. The 
Board will deliberate both Management’s and its own perspectives, and challenge the Management’s views and 
assumptions to ensure the best outcome.

(b) Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business
The MD is responsible for the day-to-day management of the business and operations of the Group in respect of 
both its regulatory and commercial functions. He is supported by Management and the Financial Controller.

Management’s performance, under the leadership of the MD, is assessed by the Board through monitoring the 
success in delivering the approved targets and business plans against the performance of the Group. 

(c) identifying principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate internal controls and mitigation 
measures
The AC, through the internal audit function, advises the Board on areas of high risk faced by the Group and the 
adequacy of compliance and control throughout the organisation. The AC reviews the action plan implemented and 
makes relevant recommendations to the Board to manage risks.

(d) Succession Planning
The Board has entrusted the NC and RC with the responsibility to review candidates for the Board and key management 
positions and to determine remuneration packages for these appointments, and to formulate nomination, selection, 
remuneration and succession policies for the Group. 

(e) Overseeing the development and implementation of a shareholder communications policy for the Company
The Company strongly believes that effective and timely communication is essential in maintaining good relations 
with the shareholders, investors and investment community. The Company carried out its Investor Relations (“IR”) 
activities with reference to its stated Corporate Disclosure Policy, which is available on its website.

The Company has identified Datuk Dr Haris Bin Hj Salleh as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom 
concerns of shareholders and other stakeholders may be conveyed. 

In addition to the above, shareholders and investors can make inquiries about investor relations matters with 
designated management personnel directly responsible for investor relations, via dedicated e-mail addresses 
available on the corporate website.

(f) Reviewing the adequacy and integrity of management information and internal control system of the 
Company
The Board is ultimately responsible for the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control system. Details 
pertaining to the Company’s internal control system and the reviews of its effectiveness are set out in the Statement 
on Risk Management and Internal Control of this Annual Report.
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 1.3 Ethical standards through Code of Conduct

The Board is guided by the Company’s Code of Conduct (“the Code”) for Directors and Employees in discharging its oversight 
role effectively. The Code requires all Directors to observe high ethical business standards, and to apply these values to all 
aspects of the Group’s business and professional practice and act in good faith in the best interests of the Group and its 
shareholders. A summary of the Code has been published on the corporate website.

1.4 Strategies promoting sustainability

The Board shall endeavour to formalise the Company’s strategies on promoting sustainability and publish the same on the 
corporate website. 

1.5 Access to information and advice 

The Directors have individual and independent access to the advice and dedicated support services of the Chartered 
Secretaries in ensuring the effective functioning of the Board. The Directors may seek advice from Management on issues 
under their respective purview. The Directors may also interact directly with Management, or request further explanation, 
information or updates on any aspect of the Company’s operations or business concerns from them.

In addition, the Board may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense on specific issues to enable it 
to discharge its duties in relation to matters being deliberated.

1.6 Qualified and competent chartered secretaries 

The Board is regularly updated and apprised by the Chartered Secretaries on new regulation issued by the regulatory 
authorities. The Chartered Secretaries also serve notice to the Directors and Principal Officers to notify them of closed 
periods for trading in SKSB shares.

The Chartered Secretaries attends and ensures that all Board meetings are properly convened and that accurate and proper 
records of the proceedings and resolutions passed are taken and maintained in the statutory register of the Company.

The Chartered Secretaries works closely with Management to ensure that there are timely and appropriate information 
flows within and to the Board and Board Committees.

1.7 Board Charter

In discharging its duties, the Board is constantly mindful of the need to safeguard the interests of the Group’s stakeholders. 
In order to facilitate the effective discharge of its duties, the Board is guided by the Board Charter which was adopted by 
the Board on 23 October 2013 and the same has been published on the corporate website.

The Board Charter serves to ensure that all Board members acting on the Group’s behalf are aware of their expanding roles 
and responsibilities. It sets out the strategic intent and specific responsibilities to be discharged by the Board members 
collectively and individually. It also regulates on how the Board conducts business in accordance with the CG principles.
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2.0 STRENGTHEN COMPOSiTiON

2.1 NC 

The NC was established on 31 December 2003 and comprises exclusively of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The NC is guided by specific terms of reference and the NC’s duties are as follows:
•	 To	recommend	candidates	for	all	directorships	to	be	filled	by	shareholders	or	the	Board;
•	 To	recommend	candidates	to	fill	the	seats	on	Board	Committees;
•	 To	assess	the	contribution	of	each	individual	Director;
•	 To	 review	 annually	 the	 Board	 structure,	 size,	 composition	 and	 the	 balance	 between	 Executive	 Directors,	 Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors to ensure that the Board has the appropriate mix of skills and 
experience including core competencies which Directors should bring to the Board and other qualities to function 
effectively and efficiently;

•	 To	take	the	necessary	steps	to	ensure	that	female	candidates	are	sought	as	part	of	the	Company’s	recruitment	exercise	
to facilitate an on-going implementation of its gender diversity policy;

•	 To	review	annually	the	independence	of	Independent	Directors;
•	 To	 ensure	 existence	 of	 an	 appropriate	 framework	 and	 succession	 plan	 for	 the	 Executive	 Director	 and	 senior	

management of the Company; 
•	 To	identify	suitable	orientation,	educational	and	training	programmes	for	continuous	development	of	Directors;
•	 To	establish	and	implement	processes	for	assessing	the	effectiveness	of	the	Board	as	a	whole,	the	Committees	of	the	

Board and assessing the contribution of each Director; and
•	 To	consider	other	matters	as	referred	to	the	Committee	by	the	Board.

Summary of Activities

The NC assessed the overall effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and the contribution and performance of the 
individual Director in the financial year 2014 including its size, structure and composition. The results of evaluation was 
reported by the NC to the Board at a meeting held on 28 October 2014 allowing them to know their standing and the Board 
was encouraged to take actions on the outcome of evaluation by recommending remedial measures on areas that need 
improvements.

Each year, the NC recommended to the Board the re-election of Directors retiring by rotation and re-appointment of the 
Director over 70 years old who wishes to continue his office. Directors who are due for re-election or re-appointment at the 
forthcoming AGM were shown in the notice of AGM. 

The Company has adopted the recommendation of the MCCG 2012 that the tenure of an Independent Director should not 
exceed a cumulative term of 9 years. The NC had reviewed the independence character and judgment of Datuk Dr Haris Bin 
Hj Salleh, Datuk Tay Puay Chuan and Dr Tan Chee Huat, who had served the Company for the tenure of more than 9 years and 
in the opinion that they will continue to bring independence view of the Company’s affairs to the Board notwithstanding 
their length of service. Further, the above mentioned Directors have exercised due care during their tenure as Independent 
Directors and carried out their professional duties in the best interest of the Company and shareholders. As such, the NC 
had recommended to the Board for Datuk Dr Haris Bin Hj Salleh, Datuk Tay Puay Chuan and Dr Tan Chee Huat to continue 
serving as Independent Directors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

The NC also assessed and reviewed the performance of the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company based on the criteria set by the Company, inclusive of the character, experience, integrity, competence and  time 
to effective discharge their role. 
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2.2 Develop, maintain and review criteria for recruitment and annual assessment of Directors

Board appointment process

The NC is responsible for identifying and recommending suitable candidates for Board membership and also for assessing 
the performance of the Directors on an on-going basis. The Board will have the ultimate responsibility and final decision on 
the appointment. This process shall ensure that the Board membership accurately reflects the long-term strategic direction 
and needs of the Company while it determines the skills matrix needed to support the strategic direction and needs of the 
Company. 

Management shall then engage broadly to develop a pool of interested potential candidates meeting the skills, expertise, 
personal qualities and diversity requirements for both the Board and the Committee appointments. 

The NC evaluates and matches the criteria of the candidate, and will consider diversity, including gender, where appropriate, 
and recommends to the Board for appointment. 

Consideration will be given to those individuals possessing the identified skill, talent and experience. 

The NC will contact those persons identified to determine the interest in serving the Company. This communication will 
ensure that prospective Board members have clarity regarding the nominating process as well as Director/Board profiles, 
roles and responsibilities, expectations of time commitments and other information as required. 

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, all Directors are required to submit themselves for re-election at 
intervals of not more than three (3) years. The Articles of Association also state that one-third (1/3) of the Board members 
shall retire from office at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and shall be eligible for re-election at the same AGM.

The new Director, if any, duly appointed by the Board will be recommended for re-election at the AGM. The Company shall 
then provide orientation and on-going education to the Board.

In making the selection, the Board is assisted by the NC to consider the following aspects: 

•	 Probity,	personal	integrity	and	reputation	–	the	person	must	have	the	personal	qualities	such	as	honesty,	integrity,	
diligence and independence of mind and fairness. 

•	 Competence	and	capability	–	the	person	must	have	the	necessary	skills,	ability	and	commitment	to	carry	out	the	
role.

Annual Assessment

The Board is tasked to review and evaluate its own performance and the performance of its Committees on an annual 
basis. The Board evaluation comprises a Board Assessment, an Individual (Self & Peer) Assessment and an Assessment of 
Independence of Independent Directors.

The assessment of the Board is based on specific criteria, covering areas such as the Board structure, Board operations, roles 
and responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committee and the Chairman’s role and responsibilities.

For Individual (Self & Peer) Assessment, the assessment criteria include contribution to interaction, quality of inputs, and 
understanding of role.

The results of the assessment would form the basis of the NC’s recommendation to the Board for the re-election of Directors 
at the next AGM.
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2.3 Gender diversity policy

The Company shall endeavour to adopt this gender diversity policy and the Board, through the NC, shall take the necessary 
steps to ensure that due consideration is given to female candidates as directors and/or Board Committee members to 
facilitate achievement of such policy and target in accordance with the MCCG 2012.

2.4 Remuneration Policies and Procedures

The RC and the Board ensure that the Company’s remuneration policy remains supportive of the Company’s corporate 
objectives and is aligned with the interest of shareholders, and that the remuneration packages of Directors and key Senior 
Management Officers are sufficiently attractive to attract and to retain persons of high calibre.

The RC is tasked to review annually the performance of the Executive Directors and submits recommendations to the Board 
on specific adjustments in remuneration and/or reward payments that reflect their respective contributions for the year, 
and which depend on the performance of the Group, achievement of the goals and/or quantified organisational targets as 
well as strategic initiatives set at the beginning of each year.
.  
The Board as a whole determines the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors and recommends the same for shareholders’ 
approval.

The remuneration package of the Executive Directors consists of monthly salary, bonus and benefits-in-kind such as 
company car and the benefit of Directors and Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any liabilities arising from acts 
committed in their capacity as Directors and Officers of the Company. The Directors and principal officers are required to 
contribute jointly towards the premium of the said policy.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration (including benefits-in-kind) of each Director during the financial year ended 30 June 
2014 are as follows:
 
   Salary Fees Bonus Benefits in- kind  Total
   (RM) (RM) (RM) (RM) (RM)

Executive Directors 269,420 21,600 20,000 7,012 318,032
Non-Executive Directors - 265,500 - 11,686 277,186

Total  269,420 287,100 20,000 18,698 595,218

The number of Directors whose remuneration falls within the following bands is shown as follows:

Range of Remuneration (RM) Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors Total 

50,000 and below 2 1 3
50,001 to 100,000 - 4 4
250,001 to 300,000 1 - 1
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3.0 REiNFORCE iNDEPENDENCE
 

3.1  Annual Assessment of independence

The Board, through the NC, shall assess the independence of Independent Directors annually. The criteria for assessing the 
independence of an Independent Director include the relationship between the Independent Directors and the Company 
and his involvement in any significant transaction with the Company.

3.2 Tenure of independent Directors

The Board has adopted a nine-year policy for Independent Non-Executive Directors. An Independent Director may continue 
to serve on the Board subject to the directors’ re-designation as a Non-Independent Director. Otherwise, the Board will 
justify and seek shareholders’ approval at the AGM in the event it retains the director as an Independent Director.

3.3 Shareholders’ approval for the Continuance Office as independent Directors

Datuk Dr Haris Bin Haji Salleh, Dr Tan Chee Huat and Datuk Tay Puay Chuan have served more than 9 years in the 
Company.

The NC has assessed the independence of the abovesaid Independent Directors based on the assessment criteria developed 
by the NC, and recommended to the Board for recommendation to shareholders for approval. Justification for the Board’s 
recommendation would be provided to shareholders.      

The Board will seek shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM to continue acting as an Independent Director, who has 
served in that capacity for more than 9 years in office as Independent Directors.

3.4 Separation of the Positions of the Chairman and the MD

The roles of the Chairman and the MD are distinct and separate with a clear division of responsibilities to ensure the 
balance of power and authority so that no single individual has absolute power within the Group. The Chairman leads the 
Board to ensure its effectiveness whereas the MD is responsible for the efficient and effective management of the business 
and operations of the Company. 

3.5 Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises 8 members, of whom, 3 are Executive Directors and 5 are Independent Non-Executive 
Directors (including the Non-Executive Chairman). The profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 8 to 10 of this Annual 
Report. The composition of the Board meets the criteria on one third (1/3) independent directorship as set out in the Main 
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The Board comprises highly respectable and professional persons and represents a diverse background of knowledge, 
expertise and experience. With their combined experience and knowledge they provide sound advice and judgment for 
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders. The mixed skills and experience are vital for the successful performance 
of the Company. 

The Executive Directors are responsible for implementing the policies and decisions of the Board and overseeing the 
operations of the Group. The Non-Executive Directors play a pivotal role in ensuring that the strategies proposed by the 
executive management are for the full benefits of the stakeholders and bring forth a balanced, unbiased and independent 
judgment on all aspects of the Group’s strategies and performance.

In addition, due to the active participation of all the Directors including the 5 Independent Non-Executive Directors, no 
individual or small group of individuals dominate the Board’s decision making processes.
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4.0 FOSTER COMMiTMENT

4.1 Time Commitment

The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors towards fulfilling their roles and 
responsibilities as Directors of the Company. This is evidenced by the attendance record of the Directors at Board Meetings, 
as set out in the table below:

Directors    Number of Meetings Attended

Tan Sri Abdul Rahim Bin Mohd Noor    5/5
Datuk Dr Haris Bin Haji Salleh    4/5
Koh Kun Chuan   5/5
Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian   5/5
Dr Tan Chee Huat   5/5
Datuk Tay Puay Chuan   5/5
Leou Thiam Lai   5/5
Loo Eng Hua   5/5

To ensure that the Directors have the time to focus and fulfil their roles and responsibilities effectively, the Directors must 
not hold directorships of more than five (5) public listed companies and shall notify the Chairman before accepting any 
new directorship.

To facilitate the Directors to plan ahead, annual meeting schedule will be prepared and circulated at the beginning of every 
year, and the tentative closed periods for dealings in securities by Directors based on the targeted dated of announcements 
of the Group’s quarterly results will also be forwarded to the Directors for attention.

4.2 Directors’ Training

All the Executive Directors have been with the Company for several years and are familiar with their duties and responsibilities 
as directors. The newly appointed directors, if any, will be given briefings and orientation by an Executive Director and top 
management of the Company on business activities of the Group and its strategic directions, as well as their duties and 
responsibilities as directors.

The needs for Directors’ training are analysed annually in conjunction with the Board’s review. The Board fully supports the 
need for its members to further enhance their skills and knowledge on relevant new laws and regulations and changing 
commercial risk to keep abreast with the developments in the economy, industry, technology and the changing business 
environment within which the Group operates. The Board members also were constantly updated by the Chartered 
Secretaries during the Board meeting on various updates on regulatory and legal development.
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Details of the training programmes attended by the Directors in for the period from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 are set out 
below:

Name of Director Courses Attended Date Attended

Tan Sri Abdul Rahim Bin Mohd Noor Updates from Bursa Securities on the Main Market 
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad

26.02.2014

Datuk Dr Haris Bin Haji Salleh Updates from Bursa Securities on the Main Market 
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad

26.02.2014

Koh Kun Chuan Strategy for corporate sustainability under economic 
pressure

06.05.2014

Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian Strategy for corporate sustainability under economic 
pressure

06.05.2014

Dr Tan Chee Huat Seminar Percukaian Kebangsaan 2013
National Tax Conference

01.11.2013
12-13.08.2014

Datuk Tay Puay Chuan Strategy for corporate sustainability under economic 
pressure

06.05.2014

Leou Thiam Lai Seminar Percukaian Kebangsaan 2013
Stepping up on Strategic Planning for sustainable 
performance

31.10.2013
03.12.2013

Loo Eng Hua Strategy for corporate sustainability under economic 
pressure

06.05.2014

        
5.0  UPHOlD iNTEGRiTY iN FiNANCiAl REPORTiNG

5.1  Directors’ responsibility in preparing financial statements

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements of the Group and of the Company are drawn up in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements 
of the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group 
and of the Company at the financial year end and of the results and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year.

In preparing the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 the Directors have:

- adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
-  Made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
-  Ensured adoption of applicable approved accounting standards; and
-  Prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis, as the Board has reasonable expectations that the Group 

and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for foreseeable future.
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The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group and Company maintain proper accounting records that disclose 
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and of the Company, and which enables them to ensure that 
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act, 1965.

The Directors also have the general responsibilities for taking such steps that are reasonably available to them to safeguard 
the assets of the Group and of the Company, and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

5.2 Compliance with applicable financial reporting standards

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and meaningful assessment of the financial performance and 
prospects of the Company via all disclosures and announcements made. 

The Board is assisted by the AC to oversee and scrutinise the process and quality of the financial reporting which includes 
reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements and the appropriateness of the Company’s accounting 
policies to ensure accuracy, adequacy and completeness of the report, as well as in compliance with the relevant accounting 
standards.

5.3 Assessment of suitability and independence of external auditors

The AC is responsible for reviewing audit, recurring audit-related and non-audit services provided by the external auditors. 
These recurring audit-related and non-audit services comprise regulatory reviews and reporting, interim reviews, tax 
advisory and compliance services.

The terms of engagement for services provided by the external auditors are reviewed by the AC prior to submission to the 
Board for approval.

The AC has reviewed the provision of non-audit services by the external auditors during the year and concluded that the 
provision of these services did not compromise the external auditors’ independence and objectivity as the amount of the 
fees paid for these services was not significant when compared to the total fees paid to the external auditors.

The AC has recommended to the Board to re-appoint BDO as the statutory auditors for the next financial year, upon which 
the shareholders’ approval will be sought at the forthcoming AGM.

6.0 RECOGNiSE AND MANAGE RiSKS

6.1 Sound framework to manage risks

The Board oversees, reviews and monitors the operation, adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal 
controls.

The AC oversees the risk management framework of the Group and advises the Board on areas of high risk faced by the 
Group and the adequacy of compliance and control throughout the organisation. The AC also reviews the action plan 
implemented and makes relevant recommendations to the Board to manage residual risks.

The Company continues to maintain and review its internal control procedures to ensure the protection of its assets and 
its shareholders’ investment.
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6.2 internal Audit Function

The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to a professional services firm namely Audex Governance Sdn Bhd 
to assist the AC in discharging its duties and responsibilities in respect of reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control as included on pages 38 to 39 of this Annual Report provides the 
overview of the internal control framework adopted by the Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

7.0 ENSURE TiMElY AND HiGH QUAliTY DiSClOSURE

7.1 Corporate Disclosure Policy and Procedures

The Board shall ensure that all communications to the public are timely, factual, accurate, complete, broadly disseminated 
and where necessary, filed with regulators in accordance with applicable laws.

The MD and the Financial Controller are responsible for determining the materiality of the information and ensuring timely, 
complete and accurate disclosure of material information to the investing public in accordance with securities laws and 
stock exchange rules and regulations, monitoring compliance with this policy and overseeing the disclosure controls and 
procedures. 

Sufficient information would be provided to the Chartered Secretaries for drafting of the necessary announcement. 

The Board is mindful that information which is expected to be material must be announced immediately, and that the 
confidential information should be handled properly to avoid leakage and improper use of such information. 

7.2 leverage on information technology for effective dissemination of information

SKRB’s website provides all relevant corporate information and it is accessible by the public. The Company’s website 
includes all announcements made by SKRB as well as its financial results. 

8.0 STRENGTHEN RElATiONSHiP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOlDERS

8.1 Encourage shareholder participation at general meetings

In an effort to encourage greater shareholders’ participation at AGMs, the Board takes cognisance in serving longer than 
the required minimum notice period for AGMs, when possible. The Chairman shall ensure that the Board is accessible to 
shareholders and an open channel of communication is cultivated.

SKRB encloses the Annual Report and Notice of AGM with regard to, amongst others, details of the AGM, their entitlement 
to attend the AGM, the right to appoint proxy and also the qualification of proxy.

The Company allows a shareholder to appoint a proxy who may not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is not a 
member of the Company, he/she need not be an advocate, an approved company auditors or a person approved by the 
Registrar of Companies.

To further promote participation of members through proxies, which is in line with the MMLR, the Company had amended 
its Articles of Association to include explicitly the right of proxies to speak at general meetings.    
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8.2 Encourage poll voting

At the AGM of the Company held on 28 November 2013, all resolutions put forth for shareholders’ approval at the meeting 
were voted on by show of hands. 

The Chairman will ensure that shareholders are informed of their rights to demand for a poll voting at the commencement 
of the AGM.

8.3 Effective communication and proactive engagement

At the AGM, Directors were present in person to engage directly with, and be accountable to the shareholders for their 
stewardship of the Company. The Directors, Management and external auditors were in attendance to respond to the 
shareholders’ queries.  

From the Company’s perspective, the AGM also serves as a forum for Directors and Management to engage with the 
shareholders personally to understand their needs and seek their feedback. The Board welcomes questions and feedback 
from shareholders during and at the end of shareholders’ meeting and ensures their queries are responded in a proper and 
systematic manner.

COMPliANCE STATEMENT

The Board believes that the Company has adopted the Principles and Recommendations of the MCCG 2012 in all material aspects, save 
as disclosed therein, for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 28 October 2014.                              .   
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL
iNTRODUCTiON

The Board is pleased to present its Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control which outlines the nature and scope of the 
risk management and internal control of the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. This Statement has been prepared 
in accordance with Paragraph 15.26(b) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s Main Market Listing Requirements and guided by the 
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Guidelines”).

BOARD RESPONSiBiliTY

The Board recognises the importance of sound framework for risk management and internal control as a platform to good corporate 
governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibility and re-affirms its commitment in maintaining sound systems of risk 
management and internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets as well as for reviewing its adequacy 
and effectiveness of these systems. 

The Board has received assurance from the Managing Director and the Financial Controller that the Group’s risk management and 
internal control systems are in place for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and are operating adequately and effectively, in all 
materials aspects.

In view of the limitations inherent in any system of risk management and internal control, such systems put into effect by Management 
can only manage and reduce, rather than eliminate the risks that may impede the achievement of the Group’s business objectives. 
Therefore, the risk management and internal control systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against errors, 
material misstatement, operational failure, fraud or loss.

RiSK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Management is regarded by the Board to be an integral part of business operations. Key Management staff and Heads of 
Department are delegated with the responsibility of identifying and managing risks related to their functions/departments. At the 
periodic management meetings, such risks identified and related internal controls are communicated to Senior Management. In 
addition, significant risks identified are brought to the attention of the Board at their scheduled meetings.

The Risk Committee, comprising key management staff, meets periodically to discuss the risks faced by the Group and ensure that 
existing mitigation actions are adequate. Risks identified were prioritised in terms of likelihood of occurrence and the impact of such 
on the Group upon crystallisation.

The Group has put in place the above mentioned risk management practices as an on-going process to assess, identify, evaluate and 
manage the various types of risks, which affect the Group’s businesses and its achievement of its business objectives.

iNTERNAl AUDiT FUNCTiON

The responsibility for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the internal control system has been delegated by the Board to the Audit 
Committee. In turn, the Audit Committee assesses the adequacy and integrity of the internal control system and its compliance with 
the Group’s policies and procedures through independent reviews performed by the outsourced internal audit function. In this respect, 
the Board through the Audit Committee receives and reviews reports on internal control from its outsourced internal audit function.
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During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, a performance review on a subsidiary was carried out and the results on the review 
were presented  to the Audit Committee. The scope of work of the outsourced internal audit function was determined by the Audit 
Committee after careful consideration and discussion with the Board. 

The cost incurred in outsourcing the performance review for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 was at RM23,112.

KEY ElEMENTS OF THE GROUP’S RiSK MANAGEMENT AND iNTERNAl CONTROl SYSTEMS

•	 The	Group	maintains	clearly	defined	and	structured	lines	of	reporting	and	responsibilities	including	proper	segregation	of	duties,	
appropriate authority limits, adequate review and approval procedures;

•	 Formal	Standard	Operating	Policies	and	Procedures	are	in	place	and	they	are	regularly	reviewed	and	updated	to	ensure	that	it	
continues to support the Group’s business activities as the Group continues to grow;

 Certain subsidiaries within the Group adhered to and applied such ISO Quality Policies and Procedures. With such certification, 
audits are conducted by external parties periodically to ensure compliance with the requirements of the certification. 

•	 Financial	 results	are	 reviewed	by	 the	Audit	Committee	and	the	Board	on	a	quarterly	basis.	An	annual	budget	 is	prepared	by	
Management to facilitate the monitoring of Group financial performance and the review of its actual performance against 
budget.

•	 Regular	dialogues	on	operational	matters	with	department	heads	are	conducted	by	the	Executive	Directors;

•	 Scheduled	management	meetings	to	discuss	the	Group’s	operations	and	performance	are	held	on	a	periodical	basis;	

•	 Quarterly	reviews	on	the	performance	of	the	Group	by	the	Board;	Active	participation	of	executive	members	of	the	Board	in	the	
day-to-day running of the operations; and

•	 Quarterly	discussion	between	the	Audit	Committee	and	Management.

 
CONClUSiON

The Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are satisfactory and has no significant internal 
control failures nor have any of the reported weaknesses that has resulted in material losses or contingencies during the financial year 
under review. However, the Board is also cognizant of the fact that the Group’s system of internal control and risk management practices 
must continuously evolve to meet the changing and challenging business environment. Therefore, the Board will, when necessary, put 
in place appropriate action plans to further enhance the system of internal control and risk management framework.

This statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 28 October 2014. 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

MATERiAl CONTRACTS

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company involving the Company’s Directors’ and/or major shareholders’ 
interests, either still subsisting at the end of the financial year, or which were entered into since the end of the financial year ended  
30 June 2014.

CORPORATE PROPOSAl AND UTiliSATiON OF PROCEEDS

The Company did not carry out any corporate proposal nor utilize proceeds derived from the corporate proposal during the  
financial year ended 30 June 2014.

SHARE BUYBACK

The Company did not carry out any shares buyback during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

OPTiONS, WARRANTS AND CONVERTiBlE SECURiTiES

The Company has not issued any options, warrants and convertible securities during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

DEPOSiTORY RECEiPT PROGRAMME

The Company did not sponsor any Depository Receipt Programme during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

SHARE iSSUANCE SCHEME

The Company did not implement any share issuance scheme during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

SANCTiONS AND/OR PENAlTiES

There was no material sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries and Directors by the relevant 
regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

PROFiT GUARANTEE

During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, there were no profit guarantees received by the Company and its subsidiaries.

VARiATiON OF RESUlTS 

There was no variation of results which differ by 10% or more than unaudited results announced. The Company did not make or 
release any profit estimate, forecast or projection during the financial period under review.

NON-AUDiT FEES

There were non-audit fees of RM5,000.00 paid by the Group to the External Auditors for review of Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. 
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Directors’ report

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and provision of management services. The principal 
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of 
these activities during the financial year.

RESULTS

     Group Company 
     RM RM
   
Profit for the financial year  85,384 42,633

Attributable to:   
Owners of the parent  86,284 42,633
Non-controlling interests (1,440) -

     85,384 42,633

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid, declared or proposed by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. The Directors do not 
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the current financial year. 

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those disclosed in the financial 
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

There were no new issues of shares or debentures during the financial year.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year. 
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Directors’ report

DIRECTORS

The Directors who have held for office since the date of the last report are:

Tan Sri Abdul Rahim Bin Mohd. Noor
Datuk Dr. Haris Bin Hj Salleh  
Tay Puay Chuan
Koh Kun Chuan
Dr. Tan Chee Huat
Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian
Loo Eng Hua
Leou Thiam Lai

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The Directors holding office at the end of the financial year and their beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and of 
its related corporations during the financial year ended 30 June 2014 as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the 
Company under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia were as follow: 

     <----------------- Number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each ----------------->
     Balance as at   Balance as at
     1.7.2013 Bought Sold 30.6.2014

Shares in the Company 
Direct interests:     
Koh Kun Chuan   6,100,215 - - 6,100,215
Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian 10,700,100 - - 10,700,100
Loo Eng Hua   100,000 - - 100,000
    
Indirect interests:    
Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian 24,000,000 - - 24,000,000

By virtue of his interests in the ordinary shares of the Company, Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian is also deemed to be interested in the 
shares of all the subsidiaries to the extent that the Company has an interest.  

None of the other Directors holding office at the end of the financial year held any interest in ordinary shares in the Company or its 
related corporations during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the Directors have received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than a 
benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the Directors as shown in the financial 
statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director 
is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest except for any benefits which may be deemed 
to have arisen from those transactions as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements.
 
There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year, to which the Company is a party, which had the object of 
enabling the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or 
any other body corporate.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

(I) AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(a) Before the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group 
and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision 
for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there are no known bad debts to be written off and that adequate 
provision had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii) to ensure that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to realise their book values in the ordinary 
course of business had been written down to their estimated realisable values.

(b) In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year have 
not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

(II) FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

(c) The Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(i) which would necessitate the writing off of bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any material extent; and

(ii) which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company misleading; and

(iii) which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the 
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(d) In the opinion of the Directors:

(i) there has not arisen any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the 
results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made; and

(ii) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable, within the period of 
twelve (12) months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the 
Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

 

Directors’ report
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Directors’ report

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(III) AS AT THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

(e) There are no charges on the assets of the Group and of the Company which have arisen since the end of the financial year 
to secure the liabilities of any other person.

(f ) There are no contingent liabilities of the Group and of the Company which have arisen since the end of the financial year.

(g) The Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in the report or financial statements which 
would render any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

 
AUDITORS

The auditors, BDO, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

(Signed)    (Signed)
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Koh Kun Chuan   Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian
Director    Director

Johor Bahru
30 September 2014
 



47ANNUAL REPORT 2014

stateMent BY Directors

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 50 to 107 have been drawn up in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards, and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia 
so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2014 and of the financial 
performance and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended.

In the opinion of the Directors, the information set out in Note 32 to the financial statements on page 108 has been compiled in 
accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of 
Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, and 
presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

On behalf of the Board,

(Signed)    (Signed)
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Koh Kun Chuan   Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian
Director    Director

Johor Bahru
30 September 2014

I, Koh Kun Chuan, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of Sern Kou Resources Berhad, do solemnly 
and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 50 to 108 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and  
I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations 
Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly )
declared by the abovenamed at )
Johor Bahru, Johor this  )
30 September 2014  )

Before me:
 

statutorY DecLaration
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inDepenDent auDitors’ report 
to tHe MeMBers oF sern Kou resources BerHaD

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Sern Kou Resources Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 
June 2014 of the Group and of the Company, and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes 
in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 50 to 107.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance 
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 30 
June 2014 and of the financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial 
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REqUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following: 

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly kept in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial 
statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purpose of the preparation of the financial statements of the 
Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those proposes. 

(c) The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse comment made 
under Section 174(3) of the Act.
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inDepenDent auDitors’ report 
to tHe MeMBers oF sern Kou resources BerHaD

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The supplementary information set out in Note 32 to the financial statements is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary 
information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the 
Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants (‘MIA Guidance’) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is 
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
 
 
OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in 
Malaysia and for no other purpose.  We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.  

BDO     Se Kuo Shen
AF : 0206    2949/05/16(J)
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountant

Johor Bahru
30 September 2014
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stateMents oF FinanciaL position
as at 30 June 2014

     Group Company
      2014 2013 2014 2013
     Note RM RM RM RM

ASSETS    

Non-current assets     
Property, plant and equipment 7 32,972,922 35,506,729 - -
Investments in subsidiaries 9 - - 26,937,457 26,937,457

      32,972,922 35,506,729 26,937,457 26,937,457
 
Current assets 
Inventories     10 12,571,658 11,797,824 - -
Trade and other receivables  11 48,604,873 42,904,322 31,672,406 33,229,406
Current tax assets    680,545 1,143,000 3,729 -
Cash and bank balances  12 6,774,584 5,756,178 1,306,950 689,731
        
     68,631,660 61,601,324 32,983,085 33,919,137

TOTAL ASSETS   101,604,582 97,108,053 59,920,542 60,856,594

EqUITY AND LIABILITIES      
       
Equity attributable to owners of the parent   
Share capital   13 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
Retained earnings/(Accumulated losses)   1,598,445 1,511,621 (172,876) (215,509)

      61,598,445 61,511,621 59,827,124 59,784,491
Non-controlling interests  (1,380) - - -
        
TOTAL EqUITY    61,597,065 61,511,621 59,827,124 59,784,491
        

LIABILITIES  
    
Non-current liabilities 
Borrowings     14 4,360,203 5,109,084 - -
Deferred tax liabilities   17 630,948 1,594,225 - -
        
      4,991,151 6,703,309 - -
        
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables  18 6,031,212 4,678,961 93,418 1,053,477
Derivative liabilities  19 11,850 13,621 - -
Borrowings     14 28,973,304 24,181,915 - -
Current tax liabilities   - 18,626 - 18,626

      35,016,366 28,893,123 93,418 1,072,103
        
TOTAL LIABILITIES   40,007,517 35,596,432 93,418 1,072,103
        
TOTAL EqUITY AND LIABILITIES  101,604,582 97,108,053 59,920,542 60,856,594

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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stateMents oF proFit or Loss
anD otHer coMpreHensiVe incoMe
For tHe FinanciaL Year enDeD 30 June 2014

     Group Company
      2014 2013 2014 2013
     Note RM RM RM RM

Revenue    22 87,048,991 104,424,393 840,000 840,000
        
Cost of sales    (78,363,678) (96,118,577) - -
        
Gross profit     8,685,313 8,305,816 840,000 840,000
        
Other income    1,539,169 1,484,785 - -
        
Selling and distribution expenses  (2,638,824)  (3,013,639) - -
        
Administrative expenses  (6,209,483) (7,553,362) (791,093) (766,786)
        
Other expenses    (582,733) (1,397,498) - -
        
Finance costs    (1,597,944) (1,235,082) - -
        
(Loss)/Profit before tax  23 (804,502) (3,408,980) 48,907 73,214
        
Taxation    24 889,886 (508,079) (6,274) (93,851)
        
Profit/(Loss) for the financial year  85,384 (3,917,059) 42,633 (20,637)
        
Other comprehensive income, net of tax  - - - -
        
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  85,384 (3,917,059) 42,633 (20,637)
        
Profit/(Loss) attributable to:      

Owners of the parent   86,824 (3,917,059) 42,633 (20,637)
Non-controlling interests  (1,440) - - -
        
      85,384 (3,917,059) 42,633 (20,637)

Earnings/(Loss) per ordinary share attributable 
 to owners of the parent (sen)      
  
 - Basic    25 0.07 (3.26) 

 - Diluted   25 0.07 (3.26)

    

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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stateMents oF cHanGes in eQuitY
For tHe FinanciaL Year enDeD 30 June 2014

       Distributable
         Non-
      Share Retained  controlling 
Group     capital earnings Total interests Total
     Note RM RM RM RM RM

Balance as at 1 July 2012  60,000,000 5,428,680 65,428,680 (2,346) 65,426,334

Loss for the financial year  - (3,917,059) (3,917,059) - (3,917,059)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax  - - - - -

Total comprehensive loss  - (3,917,059) (3,917,059) - (3,917,059)

Transactions with owners
Disposal of a subsidiary  27 - - - 2,346 2,346
Total transactions with owners  - - - 2,346 2,346

Balance as at 30 June 2013  60,000,000 1,511,621 61,511,621 - 61,511,621

Balance as at 1 July 2013  60,000,000 1,511,621 61,511,621 - 61,511,621

Profit/(Loss) for the financial year  - 86,824 86,824 (1,440) 85,384
Other comprehensive income, net of tax  - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss  - 86,824 86,824 (1,440) 85,384

Transactions with owners
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 27 - - - 60 60
Total transactions with owners  - - - 60 60

Balance as at 30 June 2014  60,000,000 1,598,445 61,598,445 (1,380) 61,597,065
  

       Share Accumulated 
Company      capital losses Total
       RM RM RM

Balance as at 1 July 2012   60,000,000 (194,872) 59,805,128

Loss for the financial year   - (20,637) (20,637)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax   - - -

Total comprehensive loss   - (20,637) (20,637)

Balance as at 30 June 2013   60,000,000 (215,509) 59,784,491

Balance as at 1 July 2013   60,000,000 (215,509) 59,784,491

Profit for the financial year   - 42,633 42,633
Other comprehensive income, net of tax   - - -

Total comprehensive income   - 42,633 42,633

Balance as at 30 June 2014   60,000,000 (172,876) 59,827,124

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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stateMents oF casH FLoWs
For tHe FinanciaL Year enDeD 30 June 2014

     Group Company
      2014 2013 2014 2013
     Note RM RM RM RM

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss)/Profit before tax   (804,502) (3,408,980) 48,907 73,214

Adjustments for:  
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7 2,935,162 3,130,155 - -
Fair value adjustment on derivative financial 
 instruments     (1,771) 13,621 - -
Gain on disposal of:      
-  property, plant and equipment   (67,081) (21,998) - -
-  a subsidiary   27 - (2,492) - -
Impairment of goodwill on consolidation 8 - 451,617 - -
Interest expense    1,595,984 996,601 - -
Interest income    (11,298) (18,693) - -
Property, plant and equipment written off  7 365 24 - -
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange   - (218,297) - -

Operating profit before working capital changes  3,646,859 921,558 48,907 73,214

Changes in working capital:
Inventories     (773,834) (2,330,378) - -
Trade and other receivables  (5,700,551) 2,499,947 - -
Trade and other payables  1,352,251 (551,997) 39,941 (22,500)

Cash (used in)/generated from operations  (1,475,275) 539,130 88,848 50,714
Tax paid     (251,815) (543,258) (43,750) (67,225)
Tax refunded    622,253 264,281 15,121 -

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities  (1,104,837) 260,153 60,219 (16,511)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 
Net cashflows on disposal/acquisition 
 of a subsidiary   27 60 (49) - 51
Interest received     11,298 18,693 - -
Deposits pledged to licensed banks  454,705 (13,923) - -
Repayments from subsidiaries  - - 557,000 401,000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7(a) (242,239) (262,361) - -
Proceeds from disposal of  property, 
 plant and equipment  77,000 22,000 - -

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities  300,824 (235,640) 557,000 401,051

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD (519103-X)54

     Group Company
      2014 2013 2014 2013
     Note RM RM RM RM

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
        
Interest paid    (1,595,984) (996,601) - -
Repayments to hire purchase creditors  (578,163) (489,859) - -
Drawdown of term loans   10,000,000 3,145,200 - -
Repayments of: 
-  bankers’ acceptances   (2,071,000) (1,975,000) - -
-  term loans    (3,790,468) (250,649) - -

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities   1,964,385 (566,909) - -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
 cash equivalents   1,160,372 (542,396) 617,219 384,540
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 
 of financial year   3,573,439 4,115,835 689,731 305,191

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
 financial year   12(c) 4,733,811 3,573,439 1,306,950 689,731

stateMents oF casH FLoWs
For tHe FinanciaL Year enDeD 30 June 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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notes to tHe FinanciaL stateMents
30 June 2014

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main Market of 
the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at Lot PTD 6019 (Lot 8804), Jalan Perindustrian 1, 
Kawasan Perindustrian Bukit Bakri, Mukim Bakri, 84200 Muar, Johor Darul Takzim.

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. 
These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM’), which is also the Company’s functional currency. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution by the Board of Directors on 30 September 
2014.

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of management services. The 
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in 
the nature of these activities during the financial year.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company set out on pages 50 to 107 have been prepared in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (‘MFRSs’), International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) and the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. However, Note 32 to the financial statements set out on page 108 has been prepared in 
accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of 
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants 
(‘MIA Guidance’) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of accounting 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
as otherwise indicated in the financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires the Directors to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and 
contingent liabilities. In addition, the Directors are also required to exercise their judgement in the process of applying 
the accounting policies. The areas involving such judgements, estimates and assumptions are disclosed in Note 6 to the 
financial statements. Although these estimates and assumptions are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of events and 
actions, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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notes to tHe FinanciaL stateMents
30 June 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.2 Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries. Control 
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only 
if the Group has:

(a) Power over the investee;
(b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;  and
(c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

If the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) Rights arising from other contractual agreements; and
(c) The voting rights of the Group and potential voting rights.

Intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised gains arising from 
transactions with associates and joint ventures are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest 
in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is 
no impairment.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as that of the Company, using 
consistent accounting policies. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed to ensure consistency 
with the policies adopted by the other entities in the Group.

Non-controlling interests represents the equity in subsidiaries that are not attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of 
the Company, and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the 
Company. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent 
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this 
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
 
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to 
one or more of the three elements of control. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred 
to the Group up to the effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of 
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the financial year are included in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted 
for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are 
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which 
the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity 
and attributed to owners of the parent. 
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notes to tHe FinanciaL stateMents
30 June 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and
(ii)  the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any  

non-controlling interests.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for  
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same manner as would be required if the 
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date 
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under MFRS 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, where applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in associate 
or jointly venture.

4.3 Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method of accounting.

Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured at their 
fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

(a) deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and 
measured in accordance with MFRS 112 Income Taxes and MFRS 119 Employee Benefits respectively;

(b) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement by 
the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment transactions are measured in accordance with MFRS 2 Share-based 
Payment at the acquisition date; and

(c) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with MFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for 
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

 
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the serviced are 
received.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Measurement period adjustments to contingent consideration are dealt with as follows:

(a) If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within 
equity.

(b) Subsequent changes to contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument within 
the scope of MFRS 139 are recognised either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income in accordance with 
MFRS 139. All other subsequent changes are recognised in profit or loss.



SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD (519103-X)58

notes to tHe FinanciaL stateMents
30 June 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.3 Business combination (continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are re-measured to fair value 
at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

Components of non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to 
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the present ownership 
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components 
of non-controlling interests shall be measured at their acquisition-date fair values, unless another measurement basis is 
required by MFRSs. The choice of measurement basis is made on an combination-by-combination basis. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition 
plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the amount of non-
controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree 
(if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill in the statement of 
financial position. 

4.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost.  Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised.  The 
costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred. Cost also 
comprises the initial estimate of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located for which 
the Group is obligated to incur when the item is acquired, if applicable.
 
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset 
and which has different useful life, is depreciated separately.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. The freehold land is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the assets to their residual values on a straight line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The principal depreciation rates are as follows:

Leasehold land 60 to 99 years
Buildings  2% - 10% 
Motor vehicles and forklifts 20%
Plant and machinery, factory equipment, tools and equipment 10%
Motor vehicles and forklifts 10% - 20%
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 10%
Renovation  10%



59ANNUAL REPORT 2014

notes to tHe FinanciaL stateMents
30 June 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Freehold land has unlimited useful life and is not depreciated. Building work in progress is stated at cost. Building work in 
progress is not depreciated until such time when the asset is available for use.  

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed for 
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable.  A 
write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount (see Note 4.7 to the financial statements on 
impairment of non-financial assets).

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to ensure 
that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.  If expectations 
differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change is an accounting estimate.  

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying 
amount is included in profit or loss.

4.5 Leases and hire purchase 

(a) Hire purchase

Assets acquired under hire purchase which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group 
are recognised initially at amounts equal to the fair value of the hire purchase property or, if lower, the present 
value of minimum hire purchase payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.  The discount rate used 
in calculating the present value of the minimum hire purchase payments is the interest rate implicit in the hire 
purchase, if this is practicable to determine; if not, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used.  Any initial direct 
costs incurred by the Group are added to the amount recognised as an asset.  The assets are capitalised as property, 
plant and equipment and the corresponding obligations are treated as liabilities.  The property, plant and equipment 
capitalised are depreciated on the same basis as owned assets.

The minimum hire purchase payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability.  The finance charges are recognised in profit or loss over the period of the hire purchase term so 
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining hire purchase liabilities.

(b) Operating leases

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantively all the risks and reward incidental to 
ownership.

Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4.5 Leases and hire purchase (continued)

(c) Leases of land and buildings

For leases of land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for the purpose of lease 
classification and these leases are classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as leases of other assets.

The minimum lease payments including any lump-sum upfront payments made to acquire the interest in the land 
and buildings are allocated between the land and the buildings elements in proportion to the relative fair values of 
the leasehold interests in the land element and the buildings element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

For a lease of land and buildings in which the amount that would initially be recognised for the land element is 
immaterial, the land and buildings are treated as a single unit for the purpose of lease classification and is accordingly 
classified as a finance or operating lease. In such a case, the economic life of the buildings is regarded as the economic 
life of the entire leased asset.

4.6 Investments 

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group and the Company has power to control the financial and operating policies so 
as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or 
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group has such power over another entity.

An investment in subsidiary, which is eliminated on consolidation, is stated in the Company’s separate financial statements 
at cost. Put options written over non-controlling interests on the acquisition of subsidiary shall be included as part of the 
cost of investment in the Company’s separate financial statements. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the written 
put options over non-controlling interests shall be recognised in profit or loss. Investments accounted for at cost shall 
be accounted for in accordance with MFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations when they are 
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with MFRS 5.

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event or other circumstance, the Group would derecognise all 
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests at their carrying amount and to recognise the fair value of the consideration 
received. Any retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the date control is lost. The resulting 
difference is recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss.
 

4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets, except for financial assets (excluding investment in subsidiaries) and inventories, are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  If any such 
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is estimated for an individual asset. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of the individual asset, the impairment test is carried out on the cash generating unit (‘CGU’) to which the asset 
belongs. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. 
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4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In estimating the value in use, the estimated future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use of the 
asset and from its ultimate disposal are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates 
have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when the carrying amount of the asset or the 
CGU exceeds the recoverable amount of the asset or the CGU. The total impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying 
amount of the assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU.

The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

An impairment loss for other assets is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the assets’ recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

An impairment loss is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Such 
reversals are recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

4.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out formula. The cost comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion plus 
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of work-in-progress and 
finished goods includes the cost of raw materials, direct labour, other direct cost and a proportion of production overheads 
based on normal operating capacity of the production facilities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale.

4.9 Advance payments made for purchase of rubberwood and timber logs
 
Advance payments made for purchase of rubberwood and timber logs are treated as prepayments. The costs of rubberwood 
and timber logs shall be systematically deducted against prepayments upon transfer of rubberwood and timberlog.

4.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another enterprise.

A financial asset is any asset that is cash, an equity instrument of another enterprise, a contractual right to receive cash on 
another financial asset from another enterprise, or a contractual right to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities 
with another enterprise under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Group.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another 
enterprise, or a contractual obligation to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another enterprise under 
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group.



SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD (519103-X)62

notes to tHe FinanciaL stateMents
30 June 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 

4.10 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Group has become a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.  At initial recognition, a financial instrument is recognised at fair value plus, in the 
case of a financial instrument not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issuance of the financial instrument.

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if, and only if the economic 
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative is not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the 
host contract, a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative meets the definition of a derivative, 
and the hybrid instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(a) Financial assets

A financial asset is classified into the following four (4) categories after initial recognition for the purpose of 
subsequent measurement:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise financial assets that are held for trading (i.e. 
financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of resale in the near term), derivatives (both, freestanding 
and embedded) and financial assets that were specifically designated into this classification upon initial 
recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss are measured 
at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on financial assets classified as at fair 
value through profit or loss exclude foreign exchange gains and losses, interest and dividend income. Such 
income is recognised separately in profit or loss as components of other income or other operating losses.

However, derivatives that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted equity instruments that do 
not have a quoted market price in an active market are recognised at cost.

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity comprise non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.  Gains or losses on financial assets classified as held-to-maturity 
are recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, and through the 
amortisation process.
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4.10 Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Loans and receivables

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables comprise non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as loans and receivables are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses on financial assets classified as loans and receivables 
are recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, and through the 
amortisation process.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale comprise non-derivative financial assets that are designated as 
available for sale or are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value. 
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as available-for-sale are 
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains 
and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income are recognised in profit or loss. However, interest calculated 
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss whilst dividends on available-for-sale equity 
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Cash and bank balances include cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, deposits and other short term, highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three (3) months or less, which are readily convertible to cash and are 
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial asset has expired. 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of 
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or 
loss that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income shall be recognised in profit or loss.

A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require delivery 
of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or marketplace convention.

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade 
date accounting.
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4.10 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Financial liabilities 

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement.  A financial liability is classified into the following two (2) categories after initial recognition for the 
purpose of subsequent measurement:

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise financial liabilities that are held for trading, 
derivatives (both, freestanding and embedded) and financial liabilities that were specifically designated into 
this classification upon initial recognition.  
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss are measured 
at fair value.  Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.  Net gains or losses on financial assets classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss exclude foreign exchange gains and losses, interest and dividend income.  Such 
income is recognised separately in profit or loss as components of other income or other operating losses.

 (ii) Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities comprise non-derivative financial liabilities that are 
neither held for trading nor initially designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.  Gains or losses on other financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss when the financial 
liabilities are derecognised and through the amortisation process. 

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished, i.e. when the obligation specified in 
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt 
instruments with substantially different terms are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial 
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing 
financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new 
financial liability.

Any difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and 
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or 
loss.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original 
or modified terms of a debt instrument.

The Group designates corporate guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries as financial 
liabilities at the time the guarantee is issued.

The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance 
with MFRS 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less 
cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.
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4.10 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the 
contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, 
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Corporate guarantees provided by the Company for no compensation, in relation to loans or payables of subsidiaries 
are initially measured at fair value and any resulting differences are recognised as contributions by the Company 
which form part of the cost of investment in subsidiaries.

(c) Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and the Company 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

Ordinary shares are recorded at the nominal value and proceeds in excess of the nominal value of shares issued, if 
any, are accounted for as share premium. Both ordinary shares and share premium are classified as equity. Transaction 
costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity, net of any related income tax benefit. 
Otherwise, they are charged to profit or loss.

Interim dividends to shareholders are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared. Final dividends 
are recognised upon the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

4.11 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired at the end of each reporting 
period.

Loans and receivables
 
The Group collectively considers factors such as the probability of bankruptcy or significant financial difficulties of the 
receivable, and default or significant delay in payments to determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment 
loss on loans and receivables has occurred.  Other objective evidence of impairment include historical collection rates 
determined on an individual basis and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that are directly 
correlated with the historical default rates of receivables.

If any such objective evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the financial 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate.  The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and it objectively relates to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying 
amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of impairment reversed is 
recognised in profit or loss.
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4.12 Borrowing costs
   
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or production of a qualified asset is capitalised as part of 
the cost of the asset until when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale 
are complete, after which such expense is charged to profit or loss. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing cost is suspended during 
extended periods in which active development is interrupted.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is the actual borrowing costs incurred on the borrowing during 
the period less any investment income on the temporary investment of the borrowing.

All other borrowing cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.13 Income taxes 

Income taxes include all taxes on taxable profit. Taxes in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
comprise current tax and deferred tax.

(a) Current tax

Current tax expenses are determined according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the Group operates and 
include all taxes based upon the taxable profits, and real property gains taxes payable on disposal of properties, if 
any.

(b) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in full using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the carrying 
amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position and its tax base.

Deferred tax is recognised for all temporary differences, unless the deferred tax arises from goodwill or the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of transaction, 
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits would be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.  The 
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.  If it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profits would be available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be 
utilised, the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset would be reduced accordingly. When it becomes probable that 
sufficient taxable profits would be available, such reductions would be reversed to the extent of the taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of 
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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4.13 Income taxes (continued)

(b) Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax would be recognised as income or expense and included in the profit or loss for the period unless the 
tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or different period, directly to equity, in which case the 
deferred tax would be charged or credited directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the announcement of tax rates and tax laws by the Government in the 
annual budgets which have the substantive effect of actual enactment by the end of each reporting period.

4.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past event, when it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision will be discounted to its present value at a 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.  If it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the 
provision will be reversed.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation 
under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a provision.
 

4.15 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present 
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation.  A contingent liability also recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.  The Group does not recognise a 
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group.  The Group does not recognise 
contingent assets but disclose its existence where inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.
 
In the acquisition of subsidiary by the Group under business combinations, contingent liabilities assumed are measured 
initially at their fair value at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. 
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4.16 Employee benefits

(a) Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, social security contributions, paid annual leave, paid sick leave and bonuses are recognised as an 
expense in the financial year when employees have rendered their services to the Group.

Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised as expense when 
employees render services that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences.  Short term non-
accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

Bonuses are recognised as an expense when there is a present, legal or constructive obligation to make such 
payments, as a result of past events and when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
 

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Group makes contribution to a statutory provident fund and recognised as a liability after deducting any 
contribution already paid and as an expense in the period in which the employees render their services.

4.17 Foreign currencies

(a) Functional and presentation currency 

Item included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entity are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’).  The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM’), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.  

(b) Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Ringgit Malaysia at rates of exchange ruling at the transaction 
dates.  Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are translated into 
Ringgit Malaysia at rates of exchange ruling at that date unless hedged by forward foreign exchange contracts, in 
which case the rates specified in such a forward foreign exchange contracts, in which case the rates specified in such 
a forward contracts are used.  All exchange differences arising from the settlement of foreign currency transactions 
and from the translation of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are included in profit or loss in the period 
in which they arise.  Non-monetary items initially denominated in foreign currencies, which are carried at historical 
cost are translated using the historical rate as of the date of acquisition, and non-monetary items which are carried 
at fair value are translated using the exchange rate that existed when the values were determined for presentation 
currency purposes.
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4.18 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of discounts and rebates.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction would 
flow to the Group and the Company, and the amount of revenue and the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be reliably measured and specific recognition criteria have been met, as follows:

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods has been 
transferred to the customer and where the Group does not have continuing managerial involvement over the goods, 
which coincides with the delivery of goods and acceptance by customers.

(b) Services rendered

Revenue in respect of the rendering of services is recognised when the stage of completion at the end of each 
reporting period and the cost incurred can be reliably measured. The stage of completion is determined by the 
services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

(c) Interest income 

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

(d) Rental income

Rental income is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term of an ongoing lease. The aggregate cost 
of incentives provided to the lessee is recognised as reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight line 
basis.

(e) Management fee

Management fee from rendering of services is recognised when the services are rendered to the subsidiaries. 

4.19  Operating segments

Operating segments are defined as components of the Group that:

(a) Engages in business activities from which it could earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and 
expenses relating to transactions with other components of the Group);

(b) Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker of the Group in making 
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assessing its performance; and

(c) For which discrete financial information is available.

An operating segment may engage in business activities for which it has yet to earn revenues.
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4.19  Operating segments (continued)

The Group reports separately information about each operating segment that meets any of the following quantitative 
thresholds:

(a) Its reported revenue, including both sales to external customers and intersegment sales or transfers, is ten (10) per 
cent or more of the combined revenue, internal and external, of all operating segments.

(b) The absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is ten (10) per cent or more of the greater, in absolute amount of:

(i) The combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a loss; and

(ii) The combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss.

(c) Its assets are ten (10) percent or more of the combined assets of all operating segments.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be considered reportable, and separately 
disclosed, if the management believes that information about the segment would be useful to users of the financial 
statements.

Total external revenue reported by operating segments shall constitute at least seventy five (75) percent of the Group’s 
revenue. Operating segments identified as reportable segments in the current financial year in accordance with the 
quantitative thresholds would result in a restatement of prior period segment data for comparative purposes.

4.20 Earnings per share

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year 
attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the financial year.

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year 
attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the financial year adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares.
 

4.21 Fair value measurements

The fair value of an asset or a liability is determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or in the 
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.
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4.21 Fair value measurements (continued)

The Group measures the fair value of an asset or a liability by taking into account the characteristics of the asset or liability 
if market participants would take these characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability. The Group has 
considered the following characteristics when determining fair value: 

(a) The condition and location of the asset; and

(b) Restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset.

The fair value measurement for a non-financial asset takes into account the ability of the market participant to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would 
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The fair value of a financial or non-financial liability or an entity’s own equity instrument assumes that:

(a) A liability would remain outstanding and the market participant transferee would be required to fulfil the obligation. 
The liability would not be settled with the counterparty or otherwise extinguished on the measurement date; and

(b) An entity’s own equity instrument would remain outstanding and the market participant transferee would take on 
the rights and responsibilities associated with the instrument. The instrument would not be cancelled or otherwise 
extinguished on the measurement date.
 

5. ADOPTION OF NEW MFRSs AND AMENDMENT TO MFRSs

5.1 New MFRSs adopted during the current financial year

The Group and the Company adopted the following Standards of the MFRS Framework that were issued by the Malaysian 
Accounting Standards Board (‘MASB’) during the financial year:

Title   Effective Date
MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
MFRS 119 Employee Benefits (2011)  1 January 2013
MFRS 127 Separate Financial Statements  1 January 2013
MFRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures  1 January 2013
Amendments to MFRS 1 Government Loans 1 January 2013
Amendments to MFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2013
Amendments to MFRSs Annual Improvements 2009 - 2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 11 and MFRS 12 Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements 
 and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance 1 January 2013
IC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2013
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5. ADOPTION OF NEW MFRSs AND AMENDMENT TO MFRSs

5.1 New MFRSs adopted during the current financial year

There is no material effect upon adoption of the above standards during the financial year other than:

MFRS 13 is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

This Standard is now the sole MFRS containing the framework for determining the measurement of fair value and the 
disclosure of information relating to fair value measurement, when fair value measurements and/or disclosures are required 
or permitted by other MFRSs.

As a result, the guidance and requirements relating to fair value measurement that were previously located in other MFRSs 
have now been relocated to MFRS 13.

Whilst there have been some rewording of the previous guidance on MFRS 13, there are very few changes to the previous 
fair value measurement requirements. Instead, MFRS 13 is intended to clarify the measurement objective, harmonise the 
disclosure requirements, and improve consistency in application of fair value measurement.

MFRS 13 did not materially impact any fair value measurements of the assets or liabilities of the Group and the Company, it 
has only a presentation and disclosure impact, and therefore has no effect on the financial position or performance of the 
Group and the Company.

5.2  New MFRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations of the MFRS Framework that have been issued 
by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (‘MASB’) but have not been adopted by the Group and the Company.

Title   Effective Date
Amendments to MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: Investment Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities: Investment Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 127 Separate Financial Statements (2011): Investment Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 132 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 136 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 139 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 1 January 2014
IC Interpretation 21 Levies 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 119 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions  1 July 2014
Amendments to MFRSs Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
Amendments to MFRSs Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
Mandatory Effective Date of MFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures Deferred
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2009) Deferred
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2010) Deferred
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Hedge Accounting and Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 7 and MFRS 139) Deferred
MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation 
 and Amortisation 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016

The Group and the Company is in the process of assessing the impact of implementing these Standards, since the effects 
would only be observable for the future financial years.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

6.1 Changes in estimates

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Directors are of the opinion that there are no changes in estimates at the end of the reporting period.

6.2 Critical judgement made in applying accounting policies
  

The following are judgements made by management in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(a) Classification of non-current bank borrowings

Term loan agreements entered into by the Group include repayment on demand clauses at the discretion of financial 
institutions. The Group believes that in the absence of a default being committed by the Group, these financial 
institutions are not entitled to exercise its right to demand for repayment. Accordingly, the carrying amount of the 
term loans have been classified between current and non-current liabilities based on their repayment period.

(b) Contingent liabilities on corporate guarantees

The Directors are of the view that the chances of the financial institutions to call upon the corporate guarantees are 
remote.

6.3 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The followings are key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of 
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight line basis over the assets’ useful lives. 
Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment in accordance with accounting 
policy stated in Note 4.4 to the financial statements. These are common life expectancies applied in this industry. 
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and 
the residual values of these assets, and therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.
 

(b) Income taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for any anticipated tax audit 
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes would be due. Where the final tax outcome is different from 
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences would impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions 
in the period in which such determination is made.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6.3 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the losses and deductible temporary differences 
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that 
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 
strategies.

(d) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes impairment of receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.  Impairment 
is applied to receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not 
be recoverable.  The management specifically analyses historical bad debt, customer creditworthiness, current 
economic trends and changes in customer payment terms when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy 
of impairment of receivables.  Where expectations differ from the original estimates, the differences will impact the 
carrying amount of receivables.

(e) Write down for obsolete or slow moving inventories

The Group writes down its obsolete or slow moving inventories based on an assessment of their estimated net selling 
price. Inventories are written down when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts could 
not be recoverable. Management specifically analyses sales trend and current economic trends when making this 
judgement to evaluate the adequacy of the write down for obsolete or slow moving inventories. Where expectations 
differ from the original estimates, the differences will impact the carrying amount of inventories.

(f ) Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement of the financial and non-financial assets and liabilities of the Group utilises market 
observable inputs and data as far as possible, where applicable. Inputs used in determining fair value measurements 
are categorised into different levels based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised 
are:

(i) Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted);
(ii) Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs; and
(iii) Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data).
 
The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of the inputs used in the fair value 
measurement of the item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value as disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT 

         Depreciation  Balance
     Balance as at    charge for  as at
Group   1.7.2013 Additions Disposals Written-off the year  30.6.2014
     RM RM RM RM RM RM

       
Carrying amount       
       
Freehold land, at cost 3,871,501 - - - - 3,871,501
Leasehold land, at cost 4,325,282 - - - (66,409) 4,258,873
Buildings, at cost  20,279,370 - - - (612,512) 19,666,858
Plant and machinery, factory 
 equipment, tools and equipment 4,453,220 165,120 (9,916) - (1,438,309) 3,170,115
Motor vehicles and forklifts 1,567,200 216,337 (3) - (561,199) 1,222,335
Office equipment, furniture and 
 fittings   545,067 30,182 - (365) (147,602) 427,282
Renovation   465,089 - - - (109,131) 355,958

       
     35,506,729 411,639 (9,919) (365) (2,935,162) 32,972,922

    <-------------------------- At 30.6.2014 ------------------------->
       Accumulated  Carrying 
      Cost  depreciation amount 
      RM RM RM

       
Freehold land    3,871,501 - 3,871,501
Leasehold land    5,143,157 (884,284) 4,258,873
Buildings     25,167,097 (5,500,239) 19,666,858
Plant and machinery, factory equipment, tools and equipment  26,598,125 (23,428,010) 3,170,115
Motor vehicles and forklifts   5,788,026 (4,565,691) 1,222,335
Office equipment, furniture and fittings   2,133,993 (1,706,711) 427,282
Renovation     694,611 (338,653) 355,958

       
      69,396,510 (36,423,588) 32,972,922
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

     Balance    Depreciation  Balance
     as at    charge for  as at
Group   1.7.2012 Additions Disposals Written-off the year  30.6.2013
     RM RM RM RM RM RM

Carrying amount 
   
Freehold land, at cost 3,871,501 - - - - 3,871,501
Leasehold land, at cost 4,398,965 - - - (73,683) 4,325,282
Buildings, at cost  20,825,884 71,327 - - (617,841) 20,279,370
Plant and machinery, factory 
 equipment, tools and equipment 5,800,246 311,717 - (4) (1,658,739) 4,453,220
Motor vehicles and forklifts 1,552,799 525,650 (2) (2) (511,245) 1,567,200
Office equipment, furniture and 
 fittings   688,401 16,467 - (18) (159,783) 545,067
Renovation   573,953 - - - (108,864) 465,089

     37,711,749 925,161 (2) (24) (3,130,155) 35,506,729

    <-------------------------- At 30.6.2013 -------------------------->
       Accumulated  Carrying 
      Cost  depreciation amount 
      RM RM RM

Freehold land    3,871,501 - 3,871,501
Leasehold land    5,143,157 (817,875) 4,325,282
Buildings     25,167,097 (4,887,727) 20,279,370
Plant and machinery, factory equipment, tools and equipment  26,603,001 (22,149,781) 4,453,220
Motor vehicles and forklifts   5,876,523 (4,309,323) 1,567,200
Office equipment, furniture and fittings   2,112,148 (1,567,081) 545,067
Renovation     694,611 (229,522) 465,089

      69,468,038 (33,961,309) 35,506,729

(a) During the financial year, the Group made the following cash payments to purchase property, plant and equipment:

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Purchase of property, plant and equipment    411,639 925,161
Financed by hire purchase arrangements    (169,400) (662,800)

Cash payments on purchase of property, plant and equipment   242,239 262,361
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment of the Group under hire purchase arrangements at the end of the 
reporting period are as follows:

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Motor vehicles    397,045 416,000
Plant and equipment    211,402 246,800

      608,447 662,800

(c) As at the end of the reporting period, freehold land, leasehold land and buildings with a carrying amount of RM20,721,652 
(2013: RM28,476,153) have been charged to financial institutions for credit facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in 
Note 14 to the financial statements.

8. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION 

    <------------------------- At 30.6.2014 -------------------------->
Group      Accumulated Carrying
2014      Cost impairment amount
      RM RM RM

Goodwill     2,451,617 (2,451,617) -

      Balance Impairment Balance
Group     as at loss for the as at
2013      1.7.2012 financial year 30.6.2013
      RM RM RM

Carrying amount   
Goodwill     451,617 (451,617) -

    <------------------------- At 30.6.2013 -------------------------->
       Accumulated Carrying
      Cost impairment amount
      RM RM RM

Goodwill     2,451,617 (2,451,617) -
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8. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

In the previous financial year, an impairment loss on goodwill amounted to RM451,617 of a subsidiary, Souncern Timber Sdn. Bhd., 
had been recognised due to declining business operations as a result of intense competition brought by the commoditisation of 
products. This subsidiary was classified under the processing and trading CGU.

The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (‘CGU’) was determined based on value-in-use calculations using cash flow 
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years. The key assumptions used for 
value-in-use calculations were as follows:

Average growth rate 1.0%
Gross margin  10.0%
Discount rate  7.85%

9. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

     Company
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Unquoted shares, at cost    26,937,457 26,937,457

(a) The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: 

Interest in equity held by

Country of 
incorporation

Company Subsidiary

Name of company 2014 2013 2014 2013 Principal activities
% % % %

Sern Kou Furniture Industries  
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 - - Manufacturer of wooden furniture

S.K. Furniture Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 - - Manufacturer of metal furniture and 
parts

Valued Products (M) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 - - Manufacturing and processing of all 
kinds of timber, wood and related 
products

Souncern Timber Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 - - Logging and processing of 
rubberwood and timber

Subsidiaries of Souncern Timber 
Sdn. Bhd.

KPK SK Plantation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - - 70 - Dormant

KPK SK Timber Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - - 70 - Dormant

(b) There were no material non-controlling interests (‘NCI’) as at 30 June 2014 and accordingly, NCI and its summarised financial 
information before intra-group elimination of the subsidiaries that have material NCI are not presented.

(c) The financial effects from the disposal/incorporation of subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.
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10. INVENTORIES

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

At cost   
Raw materials     2,849,072 3,049,618
Work-in-progress     2,023,370 2,966,424
Finished goods     7,699,216 5,781,782

       12,571,658 11,797,824

During the financial year, inventories recognised as cost of sales of the Group amounted to RM55,851,110 (2013: RM78,615,218). 

11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Trade receivables 
Third parties    27,204,644 22,719,264 - -
Less: Impairment losses        (18,604) (19,204) - -

     27,186,040 22,700,060 - -
Other receivables
Amounts owing by subsidiaries  - - 31,639,920 33,196,920
Other receivables   4,230,387 677,972 19,930 19,930
Less: Impairment losses on other receivables  (559,297) (559,297) - -

     3,671,090 118,675 31,659,850 33,216,850

Loan and receivables  30,857,130 22,818,735 31,659,850 33,216,850

Deposits     1,216,406 1,440,209 1,000 1,000
Prepayments   16,531,337 18,645,378 11,556 11,556

     48,604,873 42,904,322 31,672,406 33,229,406

 (a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted by the Group range from 30 to 120 
days (2013: 30 to 120 days). They are recognised at their original invoice amounts, which represent their fair value on initial 
recognition.  

(b) Amounts owing by subsidiaries represent advances, which are unsecured, interest-free and payable upon demand in cash 
and cash equivalents.

(c) Included in prepayments are advance payments of RM15,730,985 (2013: RM17,578,861) for the future supply of rubberwood 
and timber logs. The cost of rubberwood and timber logs supplied will be progressively deducted from these advance 
payments.

During the financial year, prepayments recognised as cost of sales of the Group amounted to RM3,040,071 (2013: 
RM7,981,527).
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11.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(d)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group is as follows:

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Neither past due nor impaired    19,848,145 18,452,139
   
Past due, not impaired   
1 to 30 days     3,567,171 2,200,352
31 to 60 days    1,222,189 425,449
61 to 90 days    103,644 39,865
91 to 120 days    769,374 216,414
More than 120 days    1,656,913 1,385,045

      7,319,291 4,267,125
Past due and impaired    18,604 19,204

      27,186,040 22,738,468

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records with the 
Group.

None of the trade receivables of the Group that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the 
financial year.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired mainly arose from active customers with on-going business relationship, 
in which the management is of the view that the amounts are recoverable based on past payments history.

The trade receivables of the Group that are past due but not impaired are unsecured in nature.

Receivables that are past due and impaired

Trade receivables of the Group that are past due and impaired at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

     Individually Impaired
 Group     2014 2013
       RM RM

Trade receivables     18,604 19,204
Less: Impairment losses     (18,604) (19,204)

      - -
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11.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(e) The reconciliation of movements in the impairment losses is as follows:

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Trade receivables   
At 1 July 2013/2012    19,204 19,204
Reversal of impairment loss    (600) -

At 30 June 2014/2013    18,604 19,204

Other receivables   
At 1 July 2013/2012    559,297 559,297
Charge for the financial year    - -

At 30 June 2014/2013    559,297 559,297

The receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to those debtors 
that exhibit significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any 
collateral or credit enhancements.

(f ) The currency exposure profile of receivables is as follows:

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Ringgit Malaysia   25,447,243 18,536,404 31,659,850 33,216,850
United States Dollar  5,459,887 4,282,331 - -

    30,907,130 22,818,735 31,659,850 33,216,850

(g) Information on financial risk of trade and other receivables is disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Cash and bank balances  6,774,584 5,301,473 1,306,950 689,731
Deposits with licensed banks  - 454,705 - -

    6,774,584 5,756,178 1,306,950 689,731
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12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(a) In the previous financial year, the deposits with licensed banks of the Group were  pledged as securities to licensed banks 
for banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 14) with the maturity periods ranging from overnight to twelve (12) 
months.

(b) The currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances is as follows:

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Ringgit Malaysia   4,672,613 5,178,602 1,306,950 689,731
Euro    14,676 31,127 - -
US Dollar    2,055,111 522,003 - -
Others   32,184 24,446 - -

    6,774,584 5,756,178 1,306,950 689,731

(c) For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following as at the end of the 
reporting period:

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Cash and bank balances  6,774,584 5,301,473 1,306,950 689,731
Deposits with licensed banks  - 454,705 - -
Bank overdrafts included in borrowings (Note 14) (2,040,773) (1,728,034) - -

    4,733,811 4,028,144 1,306,950 689,731
Less : Deposits pledged to licensed banks  - (454,705) - -

    4,733,811 3,573,439 1,306,950 689,731

 
13. SHARE CAPITAL

    Group and Company
    2014 2013
     Number  Number 
     of shares RM of shares RM

Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each:
Authorised    400,000,000 200,000,000 400,000,000 200,000,000

Issued and fully paid  120,000,000 60,000,000 120,000,000 60,000,000

The owners of the parent of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company and are 
entitled to one (1) vote per share at meeting of the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu with regard to the Company’s 
residual assets.
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14. BORROWINGS 

     Group
       2014 2013
      Note RM RM

Non-current liabilities
Hire purchase creditors     421,222 702,565
Term loans       3,938,981 4,406,519

       4,360,203 5,109,084

Current liabilities
Bankers’ acceptances     17,054,000 19,125,000
Bank overdrafts      2,040,773 1,728,034
Hire purchase creditors     443,811 571,231
Term loans       9,434,720 2,757,650

       28,973,304 24,181,915

Total borrowings     
Bankers’ acceptances     17,054,000 19,125,000
Bank overdrafts      2,040,773 1,728,034
Hire purchase creditors    15 865,033 1,273,796
Term loans      16 13,373,701 7,164,169

       33,333,507 29,290,999

 (a) Bankers’ acceptance are secured by:

(i) legal charges over the leasehold land and buildings of certain subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial 
statements;

(ii) a lien over certain deposits of the Group as disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements; and

(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

(b) Bank overdrafts are secured by:

(i) legal charge over the leasehold land and buildings of a subsidiary as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements; 
and

(ii) a corporate guarantee of the Company as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

(c) All borrowings are denominated in Ringgit Malaysia.

(d) Information on financial risk of borrowings is disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.
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15. HIRE PURCHASE CREDITORS

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Minimum hire purchase payments:   
-  not later than one year    473,989 619,588
-  later than one year and not later than five years   442,514 740,784

       916,503 1,360,372
Less: Future interest charges    (51,470) (86,576)

       865,033 1,273,796

Repayable as follows:

Current liabilities:   
-  not later than one year     443,811 571,231
Non-current liabilities:   
-  later than one year and not later than five years    421,222 702,565

      865,033 1,273,796

(a) Interest rates are fixed at the inception of the hire purchase arrangements. 

(b) Information on financial risk of hire purchase creditors is disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

16. TERM LOANS

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Term loan I repayable by 359 biweekly installments of RM17,041 each commenced in July 2011 3,756,441 4,018,969
Term loans repayable by 9 monthly installments:   
-  II, repayable from RM37,260 to RM111,780 each commenced in November 2013  37,260 745,200
-  III, repayable from RM120,000 to RM360,000 each commenced in January 2014  600,000 2,400,000
-  IV, repayable from RM60,000 to RM180,000 each commenced in March 2014  660,000 -
-  V, repayable from RM60,000 to RM180,000 each commenced in April 2014  840,000 -
-  VI, repayable from RM60,000 to RM180,000 each commenced in June 2014  1,080,000 -
-  VII, repayable from RM60,000 to RM180,000 each commenced in July 2014  1,200,000 -
-  VIII, repayable from RM175,000 to RM525,000 each commenced in July 2014  3,500,000 -
- IX, repayable from RM85,000 to RM255,000 each commenced in July 2014  1,700,000 -

        13,373,701 7,164,169

Repayable as follows: 

Current liabilities:   
-  not later than one year     9,443,398 2,757,650
   
Non-current liabilities:   
-  later than one year and not later than five years    3,930,303 4,406,519

        13,373,701 7,164,169
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16. TERM LOANS (CONTINUED)

(a) Term loans for the Group are secured by:

(i) legal charges over the freehold land and buildings of certain subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial 
statements; and

(ii) a corporate guarantee of the Company as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

(b) Information on financial risk of term loans is disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

 17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

(a) The deferred tax assets and liabilities are made up of the following:

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Balance as at 1 July 2013/2012    1,594,225 1,020,000

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 24)   
- current year     (62,940) 137,406
- (over)/under provision in prior years     (900,337) 436,819
   
       (963,277) 574,225

   
Balance as at 30 June 2014/2013    630,948 1,594,225

Presented after appropriate offsetting:   
Deferred tax assets, net    (699,518) (856,921)
Deferred tax liabilities, net    1,330,466 2,451,146

   
Balance as at 30 June 2014/2013    630,948 1,594,225

(b) The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting are as 
follows:

Deferred tax liabilities of the Group      

      Property, plant 
      and equipment  Others Total 
     RM RM RM

As at 1 July 2012   1,812,000 - 1,812,000
Recognised in profit or loss   558,478 80,668 639,146

As at 30 June 2013   2,370,478 80,668 2,451,146
Recognised in profit or loss   (1,040,012) (80,668) (1,120,680)

As at 30 June 2014   1,330,466 - 1,330,466
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17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting are as 
follows: (continued)

Deferred tax assets of the Group 

     Unused tax losses 
     and unabsorbed 
      capital allowances Others Total
     RM RM RM

As at 1 July 2012   (785,000) (7,000) (792,000)
Recognised in the profit and loss   (71,921) 7,000 (64,921)

As at 30 June 2013   (856,921) - (856,921)
Recognised in the profit and loss   157,403 - 157,403

As at 30 June 2014   (699,518) - (699,518)

(c) The amounts of temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised in the statement of financial 
position are as follows: 

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Unused tax losses    6,529,818 6,729,392
Unabsorbed capital allowances    572,886 455,700

      7,102,704 7,185,092

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items as it is not probable that taxable profit of the Group 
would be available against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilised.

The unused tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Trade payables 
Third parties    3,458,432 2,398,061 - -

Other payables 
Amounts owing to subsidiaries   - - - 1,000,000
Other payables   955,276 514,065 93,418 53,477
Deposit received   1,240,468 506,703 - -
Accruals     377,036 1,260,132 - -

    2,572,780 2,280,900 93,418 1,053,477

    6,031,212 4,678,961 93,418 1,053,477

(a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 days 
(2013: 30 to 90 days).  

(b) In the previous financial year, amounts owing to subsidiaries represented advances, which were unsecured, interest-free 
and payable on demand in cash and cash equivalents.

(c) The currency exposure profile of payables is as follows:

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Ringgit Malaysia   5,632,350 4,264,904 93,418 1,053,477
United States Dollar  398,862 414,057 - -

    6,031,212 4,678,961 93,418 1,053,477

(d) Information on financial risks of trade and other payables are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

    2014 2013
     Contract/  Contract/ 
     Notional  Notional
Group     amount Liabilities amount Liabilities 
    RM RM RM RM

Forward currency contracts  332,350 11,850 3,155,530 13,621

    
Forward currency contracts have been entered into operationally hedge forecast sales denominated in foreign currencies that are 
expected to occur at various dates within three (3) months from the end of the reporting period. The forward currency contracts 
have maturity dates that coincide with the expected occurrence of these transactions. The fair value of these components has 
been determined based on the difference between the quarterly future rates and the strike rate, discounted at the convenience 
yield of the instruments involved.
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20. COMMITMENTS 

Operating lease commitments
 
The Group had entered into non-cancellable lease agreements for land and building, resulting in future rental commitments 
which can, subject to certain terms in the agreements, be revised annually based on prevailing market rates.

The Group has aggregate future minimum lease commitment as at the end of each reporting period as follows: 

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Not later than one (1) year    254,100 366,600
Later than one (1) year and not later than five (5) years   - 160,000

       254,100 526,600

21. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

      Company
Unsecured      2014 2013
       RM RM

Corporate guarantees given to licensed banks for banking facilities granted to subsidiaries 32,459,099 28,017,203

The Directors are of the view that the fair value of such corporate guarantee is negligible as the chances of the financial institutions 
to call upon the corporate guarantee are remote.

22. REVENUE

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Sale of goods   87,048,991 104,424,393 840,000 840,000
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23. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

(Loss)/Profit before tax is arrived at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration
- current financial year  113,000 110,000 30,000 30,000
- under provision in prior year  - 11,000 - -
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 
 (Note 7)    2,935,162 3,130,155 - -
Directors’ fee paid and payable by the Company 287,100 281,000 287,100 281,000
Directors’ other emoluments paid and payable: 
- paid by the Company  308,118 336,718 308,118 336,718
- paid by the subsidiaries  1,551,490 1,480,457 - -
Fair value adjustment on derivative financial 
 instruments   1,771 13,621 - -
Impairment losses on goodwill on consolidation 
 (Note 8)    - 451,617 - -
Interest expense:  
- bank overdrafts  93,914 154,230 - -
- bankers’ acceptances  774,509 581,842 - -
- hire purchase creditors  49,474 59,836 - -
- term loans   678,087 200,693 - -
Property, plant and equipment written off (Note 7) 365 24 - -
Rental of:       
-  equipment   - 30,400 - -
-  premises    851,900 319,000 - -

And crediting: 
Bad debts recovered  600 - - - 
Gain on disposal of:
- property, plant and equipment  67,081 21,998 - -
- subsidiary   - 2,492 - -
Gain on foreign exchange transactions: 
- realised    962,204 741,102 - -
- unrealised   - 218,297 - -
Interest income from deposits with licensed banks 11,298 18,693 - -
Rental income from premises  756,000 447,191 - -
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24. TAXATION

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Current tax expense based on profit for the
 financial year:  
 - Current year  109,000 134,566 45,000 111,985
 - Over provision in prior years  (35,609) (200,712) (38,726) (18,134)

      73,391 (66,146) 6,274 93,851
Deferred tax (Note 17)
- Relating to origination and reversal of
  temporary differences  (62,940) 137,406 - -
- (Over)/Under provision in prior years  (900,337) 436,819 - -

      (963,277) 574,225 - -

      (889,886) 508,079 6,274 93,851

The Malaysian income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) of the estimated taxable profit for the fiscal 
year.  

The numerical reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting (loss)/profit multiplied by applicable tax rate 
of the Group and of the Company is as follows: 

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

(Loss)/Profit before tax   (804,502) (3,408,980) 48,907 73,214

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) (201,125) (852,245) 12,227 18,304
Tax effects in respect of:    
Deferred tax assets not recognised  - 295,169 - -
Utilisation of deferred tax assets not recognised (20,597) - - -
Non-taxable income  (28,505) - - -
Non-allowable expenses  296,287 829,048 32,773 93,681

      46,060 271,972 45,000 111,985
(Over)/Under provision in prior years
- income tax   (35,609) (200,712) (38,726) (18,134)
- deferred tax   (900,337) 436,819 - -

      (889,886) 508,079 6,274 93,851
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25. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE
 
(a)  Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share

Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the financial year 
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during 
the financial year.

     Group
       2014 2013

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent (RM)   85,384 (3,917,059)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue   120,000,000 120,000,000

Basic profit/(loss) per ordinary share (sen)   0.07 (3.26)

(b)  Diluted

The diluted earnings/(loss) per ordinary share of the Group for the financial years 2014 and 2013 are same as the basic 
earnings/(loss) per ordinary share of the Group and the Company be no dilutive potential ordinary share.

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

     Group
       2014 2013
       RM RM

Wages, salaries and bonuses    8,711,209 9,319,880
Contribution to defined contribution plan    363,051 458,947
Social security contributions    38,591 38,071
Other benefits     97,324 77,394

      9,210,175 9,894,292
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27. DISPOSAL/INCORPORATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)  Disposal of a subsidiary

In the previous financial year, on 20 February 2013, the Company disposed of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary, 
Ecofert Biotech Sdn. Bhd. for a cash consideration of RM51. 

(i) The gain on disposal of a subsidiary during the financial year was as follows:

     Group Company
     RM RM

Cost of investment    - 51
Cash in hand    100 -
Payables    (4,887) -

Net assets/Carrying amount    (4,787) 51
Less: Non-controlling interests    2,346 -

     (2,441) 51
Net proceeds from disposal    (51) (51)

Gain on disposal    (2,492) -

(ii) The effects of the incorporation of SKT and SKP on cash flows were as follows:

Group    Group Company
     RM RM

Proceeds from disposal    51 51
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary    (100) -

Net cash inflow of the Group    (49) 51

(b) Incorporation of subsidiaries (continued)

During the financial year, on 24 March 2014, the Group subscribed for 70% equity of two companies incorporated in 
Malaysia, namely KPK SK Timber Sdn. Bhd. (‘SKT’) and KPK SK Plantations Sdn. Bhd. (‘SKP’) for a total consideration of RM140, 
through its wholly owned subsidiary, Soucern Timber Sdn. Bhd..

(i) The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of SKT and SKP as at the date of incorporation were as follows:

Group   SKT SKP Total
    RM RM RM

Cash    100 100 200

Non-controlling interests measured based on their 
 proportionate interest in the recognised amounts 
 of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets  (30) (30) (60)

     70 70 140
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27. DISPOSAL/INCORPORATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Incorporation of subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) The effects of the incorporation of SKT and SKP on cash flows were as follows:

Group   SKT SKP Total
    RM RM RM

Total consideration for 70% equity interest   (70) (70) (140)
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary   100 100 200

Net cash inflow of the Group   30 30 60

28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Identities of related parties 

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or 
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice verse, or where the Group 
and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other 
entities.

The Company has controlling related party relationship with its subsidiaries.

(b) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had the following 
transactions with the related parties during the financial year:

     Company
     2014 2013
     RM RM

Subsidiaries:   
   
Management fee received from:   
- Sern Kou Furniture Industries Sdn. Bhd.   360,000 360,000
- Valued Products (M) Sdn. Bhd.    180,000 180,000
- S.K. Furniture Sdn. Bhd.    120,000 120,000
- Souncern Timber Sdn. Bhd.    180,000 180,000

Material balances with related parties at the end of reporting period are disclosed in Note 11 and Note 18 to the financial 
statements.

The related party transactions described above were carried out on mutually agreed and negotiated terms between the 
parties.
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the entity, directly and indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of 
the Group and the Company.

The remuneration of Directors was as follows:

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Executive Directors:
- basic salaries and bonus  1,666,250 1,542,500 260,000 260,000
- defined contribution plan  172,800 227,700 28,800 32,400
- social contribution  1,860 3,277 620 620
- fees   21,600 21,600 21,600 21,600

     1,862,510 1,795,077 311,020 314,620

Non-Executive Directors
- others   18,968 43,698 18,698 43,698
- fees   265,500 259,400 265,500 259,400

     284,468 303,098 284,198 303,098

     2,146,978 2,098,175 595,218 617,718

 
29. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Sern Kou Resources Berhad and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment holding, providing management services, 
manufacturing of wooden furniture, manufacturing and processing of all kinds of timber, wood and related products and logging 
and processing of rubberwood and timber.

Sern Kou Resources Berhad has arrived at three (3) reportable segments that are organised and managed separately according 
to the nature of products and services, specific expertise and technologies requirements, which requires different business and 
marketing strategies. The reportable segments are summarised as follows:

(i) Manufacturing

Manufacturing of wooden furniture.

(ii) Kiln-drying and lamination

Manufacturing and processing of all kinds of timber.

(iii) Processing and trading

 Processing and trading of rubberwood and timber logs.
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29. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Other operating segments that do not meet the quantitative threshold of an individual reportable segment comprise investment 
holding.
 
The accounting policies of operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting 
policies.

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit, excluding non-recurring losses, and in certain respect as explained 
in the table below, it is measured differently from operating profit in the consolidated financial statements. 

Inter-segment revenue is priced along the same lines as sales to external customers and conditions and is eliminated on the 
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been applied constantly throughout the current and previous financial 
years.

Segment assets exclude tax assets and segment liabilities exclude tax liabilities. Even though loans and borrowings arise from 
financing activities rather than operating activities, they are allocated to the segments based on relevant factors (e.g. funding 
requirements). Details are provided in the reconciliations from segment assets and liabilities to the position of the Group. 

     Kiln-dying Processing  
Group    and and  
2014    Manufacturing lamination trading Others Total
    RM RM RM RM RM

Revenue     
Total revenue  45,441,291 43,171,698 9,833,925 840,000 99,286,914
Inter-segment revenue (5,108,171) (1,951,559) (4,338,193) (840,000) (12,237,923)

Revenue from external customers 40,333,120 41,220,139 5,495,732 - 87,048,991

Interest income   8,635 - 2,663 - 11,298
Finance costs  (412,763) (683,190) (500,031)  (1,595,984)

Net interest expense (404,128) (683,190) (497,368) - (1,584,686)

Depreciation of property, plant 
  and equipment  (1,962,569) (850,304) (122,290) - (2,935,162)
     
Segment profit/(loss) before income tax 1,088,546 (384,437) (1,552,718) 44,107 (804,502)
     
Taxation   530,711 350,112 15,337 (6,274) 889,886
     
Other material non-cash items:     
- Fair value adjustment on derivative 
  financial instruments 1,771 - - - 1,771
     
Additions to non-current assets other 
 than financial instruments and 
 deferred tax assets 222,482 25,720 163,437 - 411,639
     
Segment assets   37,252,687 33,586,103 28,745,611 1,339,636 100,924,037
     
Segment liabilities 12,388,715 15,892,926 11,001,510 93,418 39,376,569
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29. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

     Kiln-dying Processing  
Group    and and  
2013    Manufacturing lamination trading Others Total
    RM RM RM RM RM

Revenue     
Total revenue  43,116,788 50,674,573 22,201,260 840,000 116,832,621
Inter-segment revenue (2,882,634) (4,433,939) (4,251,655) (840,000) (12,408,228)

Revenue from external customers 40,234,154 46,240,634 17,949,605 - 104,424,393

Interest income   18,419 - 274 - 18,693
Finance costs  (389,331) (596,198) (11,072)  (996,601)

Net interest expense (370,912) (596,198) (10,798) - (977,908)

Depreciation of property, plant and 
 equipment  (2,002,798) (1,004,800) (122,557) - (3,130,155)
     
Segment loss before income tax (688,674) (2,212,841) (131,554) (375,911) (3,408,980)
     
Taxation   (482,091) 54,975 12,888 (93,851) (508,079)
     
Other material non-cash items:     
- Impairment of goodwill on
  consolidation - - (451,617) - (451,617)
- Fair value adjustment on derivative 
  financial instruments (13,621) - - - (13,621)
     
Additions to non-current assets other 
 than financial instruments and 
 deferred tax assets 367,325 557,836 - - 925,161
     
Segment assets   35,957,305 33,183,185 26,102,346 722,217 95,965,053
     
Segment liabilities 12,400,953 17,962,419 3,566,732 53,477 33,983,581
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 29. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities to the corresponding amounts of the 
Group are as follows:

       2014 2013
       RM RM

Revenue   
Total revenue for reportable segments    99,286,914 116,832,621
Inter-segment revenue    (12,237,923) (12,408,228)

Revenue from external customers    87,048,991 104,424,393

Results   
Total loss for reportable segments    (804,502) (3,408,980)
Taxation     889,886 (508,079)

Profit/(Loss) for the financial year of the Group per consolidated 
 statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  85,384 (3,917,059)

Total assets for reportable segments    100,924,037 95,965,053
Tax assets     680,545 1,143,000

Assets of the Group per consolidated statement of financial position  101,604,582 97,108,053

Total liabilities for reportable segments    39,376,569 33,983,581
Tax liabilities    630,948 1,612,851

Liabilities of the Group per consolidated statement of financial position  40,007,517 35,596,432

(b) Geographical segments

In presenting information on the basis of geographical areas, segment revenue is based on the geographical location from 
which the sale transactions originated.

 Revenue from external customers     2014 2013
       RM RM

Malaysia     54,549,430 66,936,034
Australia     576,419 1,319,731
Africa      716,251 -
Singapore     250,048 728,368
United States of America and European countries    23,710,097 22,696,238
Other Asia-Pacific countries    7,246,746 12,744,021

      87,048,991 104,424,392

The Group does not have significant reliance on a single major customer, with whom the Group transacted ten (10) percent 
or more of its revenue during the financial year.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Capital management

The primary objective of the capital management of the Group is to ensure that entities of the Group would be able to 
continue as going concerns whilst maximising return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity 
ratios. The overall strategy of the Group remains unchanged from that in the previous financial year.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, as deemed appropriate.  In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, issue new shares or return capital 
to shareholders. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial year ended 30 June 
2014 and 30 June 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group 
includes within net debt, loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital represents 
equity attributable to the owners of the parent.

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Borrowings   33,333,507 29,290,999 - -
Amounts owing to  subsidiaries  - - - 1,000,000
Trade and other payables  6,031,212 4,678,961 93,418 53,477

     39,364,719 33,969,960 93,418 1,053,477
Less:       
Cash and bank balances  (6,774,584) (5,756,178) (1,306,950) (689,731)

Net debt   32,590,135 28,213,782 #n/a 363,746
       
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 61,598,445 61,511,621 59,827,124 59,784,491

Capital and net debt  94,188,580 89,725,403 #n/a 60,148,237

Gearing ratio  34.60% 31.44% #n/a 0.60%

# Not applicable

Pursuant to the requirements of Practice Note No. 17/2005 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Group is required to 
maintain a consolidated shareholders’ equity equal to or not less than the 25% of the issued and paid-up capital and such 
shareholders’ equity is not less than RM40,000,000. The Group has complied with this requirement for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2014.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
 
(b) Financial instruments

    Fair value
    through
   Loan and  profit or Available Held to
2014   receivables  loss for sale maturity Total
   RM RM RM RM RM

Group     
     
Financial assets     
Trade and other receivables 30,907,130 - - - 30,907,130
Cash and bank balances 6,774,584 - - - 6,774,584

   37,681,714 - - - 37,681,714

     Fair value 
     through  Other 
     profit or  financial
     loss liabilities Total
     RM RM RM

Financial liabilities   
Trade and other payables   - 6,031,212 6,031,212
Borrowings    - 33,333,507 33,333,507
Derivative liabilities   11,850 - 11,850

     11,850 39,364,719 39,376,569

    Fair value
    through
   Loan and  profit or Available Held to
2014   receivables  loss for sale maturity Total
   RM RM RM RM RM

Company 

Financial assets     
Other receivables 31,659,850 - - - 31,659,850
Cash and bank balances 1,306,950 - - - 1,306,950

   32,966,800 - - - 32,966,800
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

     Fair value 
     through  Other 
     profit or  financial
     loss liabilities Total
     RM RM RM

Financial liabilities   
Other payables   - 93,418 93,418

    Fair value
    through
   Loan and  profit or Available Held to
2013   receivables  loss for sale maturity Total
   RM RM RM RM RM

Group

Financial assets     
Trade and other receivables 22,818,735 - - - 22,818,735
Cash and bank balances 5,756,178 - - - 5,756,178

   28,574,913 - - - 28,574,913

     Fair value 
     through  Other 
     profit or  financial
     loss liabilities Total
     RM RM RM

Financial liabilities   
Trade and other payables   - 4,678,961 4,678,961
Borrowings    - 29,290,999 29,290,999
Derivative liabilities   13,621 - 13,621

     13,621 33,969,960 33,983,581

    Fair value
    through
   Loan and  profit or Available Held to
2013   receivables  loss for sale maturity Total
   RM RM RM RM RM

Company 

Financial assets     
Trade and other receivables 33,216,850 - - - 33,216,850
Cash and bank balances 689,731 - - - 689,731

   33,906,581 - - - 33,906,581
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

     Fair value 
     through  Other 
     profit or  financial
     loss liabilities Total
     RM RM RM

Financial liabilities     
Trade and other payables   - 1,053,477 1,053,477

(c) Methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

(i) Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation 
of fair value

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities, such as trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, 
amounts owing by/(to) subsidiaries and borrowings, are reasonable approximation of fair value, either due to their 
short-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the 
end of the reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the current position of loans and borrowings are reasonable approximations of fair values 
due to the insignificant impact of discounting.

(ii) Obligations under finance lease and fixed rate bank loans

The fair value of these financial instruments are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows at market 
incremental lending rate for similar types of lending, borrowing or leasing arrangements at the end of each reporting 
period.

(d) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair 
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable 
market data (unobservable inputs).
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table set out the financial instruments carried at and those not carried at fair value for which fair value is 
disclosed, together with their fair values and carrying amounts shown in the statements of financial position:

   Fair value of financial instruments  Fair value of financial instruments 

2014   carried at fair value not carried at fair value  Total fair Carrying 

Group   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total value amount

   RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Financial liabilities at 
 fair value through 
 profit or loss          
- Forward currency 
  contracts  - 11,250 - 11,250 - - - - 11,250 11,850
          
Other financial liabilities           
- Term loans  - - - - - 12,452,852 - 12,452,852 12,452,852 13,373,701
- Hire purchase creditors - - - - - 836,366 - 836,366 836,366 865,033
- Bank overdrafts - - - - - 2,040,773 - 2,040,773 2,040,773 2,040,773

      - 11,250 - 11,250 - 15,329,991 - 15,329,991 15,341,241 16,291,357

2013          

Group          

          
Financial liabilities at 
 fair value through 
 profit or loss          
- Forward currency contracts - 13,621 - 13,621 - - - - 13,621 13,621
          
Other financial liabilities           
- Term loans  - - - - - 6,106,884 - 6,106,884 6,106,884 7,164,169
- Hire purchase creditors - - - - - 1,223,127 - 1,223,127 1,223,127 1,273,796
- Bank overdrafts - - - - - 1,728,034 - 1,728,034 1,728,034 1,728,034

      - 13,621 - 13,621 - 9,058,045 - 9,058,045 9,071,666 10,179,620

During the reporting year ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 
3 fair value measurements.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The financial risk management objective of the Group is to optimise value creation for shareholders whilst minimising the 
potential adverse impact arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange and interest rates and the unpredictability of 
the financial markets.

The Group operates within an established risk management framework and clearly defined guidelines that are regularly reviewed 
by the Board of Directors and does not trade in derivative financial instruments. Financial risk management is carried out through 
risk review programmes, internal control systems, insurance programmes and adherence to the Group financial risk management 
policies. The Group is exposed mainly to credit risk, liquidity and cash flow risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and market 
risk. Information on the management of the related exposures is detailed below:

(i) Credit risk 

Cash deposits and trade receivables may give rise to credit risk, which requires the loss to be recognised if a counter party 
fails to perform as contracted.  Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as 
a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

The Group’s exposure and the creditworthiness of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value 
of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by the counterparty 
limits that are reviewed and approved by management annually.

Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its trade receivables. The carrying amount of financial assets as 
recorded in the financial statements, grossed up for any allowances for impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentration of credit risk by identifying and monitoring any significant long outstanding balance 
owing by any major customer or counter party on an on-going basis.

At the end of the reporting period, approximately 72% (2013: 70%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from five (5) 
major customers. 

The Company does not have any significant concentration of credit risk at the end of the reporting period other than 
amount owing in subsidiaries of RM31,639,920 (2013: RM33,196,920).

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
 
Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed in Note 11 to the 
financial statements. Deposits with licensed banks that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with or entered into 
with reputable financial institutions.

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
 
Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 11 to the financial 
statements.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk on sales that are denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group also holds cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies for working capital purposes. At the 
end of the reporting period, such foreign currency balances of RM2,101,971 (2013: RM577,576) for the Group.

The foreign currency in which these transactions are denominated are mainly United States Dollar (‘USD’) and Euro. The 
Group manages its transactional currency exposures by matching as far as possible, its receipts and payments in each 
individual currency. The Group monitors the foreign currency exchange rates closely so as to minimise the potential 
material adverse effects from these exposures in a timely manner.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss after tax to a reasonably possible change in the United 
States Dollar (‘USD’) and EURO exchange rates against the Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM’) respectively, with all other variables held 
constant.

   
     Group
 Proft/(Loss) after tax    2014 2013

       RM RM

USD/RM - Strengthen by 10% (2013: 10%)   541,400 329,271
 - Weaken by 10% (2013: 10%)   (541,400) (329,271)
   
EURO/RM - Strengthen by 10% (2013: 10%)   1,200 2,335
 - Weaken by 10% (2013: 10%)   (1,200) (2,335)

(iii) Liquidity and cash flow risks 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to service its cash obligations in the future. To mitigate this risk, the 
management measures and forecasts its cash commitments, monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents 
deemed adequate to finance the Group’s operations.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(iii) Liquidity and cash flow risks  (continued)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

    On demand 
    or within  One to Over
2014    one year five years five years Total
    RM RM RM RM

Group 

Financial liabilities    
Trade and other payables  6,031,212 - - 6,031,212
Borrowings   29,579,164 2,559,803 2,780,435 34,919,402
Derivative liabilities  11,850 - - 11,850

Total undiscounted financial liabilities  35,622,226 2,559,803 2,780,435 40,962,464

Company    
    
Financial liabilities    
Trade and other payables  93,418 - - 93,418

Total undiscounted financial liabilities  93,418 - - 93,418

    On demand 
    or within  One to Over
2013    one year five years five years Total
    RM RM RM RM

Group 

Financial liabilities    
Trade and other payables  4,678,961 - - 4,678,961
Borrowings   23,104,578 7,917,044 3,096,728 34,118,350
Derivative liabilities  13,621 - - 13,621

Total undiscounted financial liabilities  27,797,160 7,917,044 3,096,728 38,810,932

Company    
    
Financial liabilities    
Trade and other payables  1,053,477 - - 1,053,477

Total undiscounted financial liabilities  1,053,477 - - 1,053,477
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(iv) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the interest-earning deposits placed 
with licensed banks and interest-bearing borrowing. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its 
risk.

The following tables set out the carrying amounts, the average effective interest rates as at the end of the reporting period 
and the remaining maturities of the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate 
risk:

   Weighted
   average
As at  effective       More
30 June 2014  interest Within 1 - 2 2 - 3 3 - 4 4 - 5 than 5  
Group Note  rate 1 year years years years years years Total
   % RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

Fixed rates         
Hire purchase creditors 15 5.03 (443,811) (206,658) (168,637) (45,927) - - (865,033)

Floating rates         
Bankers’ acceptances 14 4.67 (17,054,000) - - - - - (17,054,000)
Bank overdrafts  14 8.10 (2,040,773) - - - - - (2,040,773)
Term loans 16 8.26 (9,434,720) (678,796) (276,995) (290,497) (304,657) (2,388,036) (13,373,701)

   Weighted
   average
As at  effective       More
30 June 2013  interest Within 1 - 2 2 - 3 3 - 4 4 - 5 than 5  
Group Note  rate 1 year years years years years years Total
   % RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

Fixed rates         
Hire purchase creditors 15 4.22 (571,231) (390,056) (149,795) (116,787) (45,927) - (1,273,796)

Floating rates         
Deposits with licensed banks 12 3.15 454,705 - - - - - 454,705
Bankers’ acceptances 14 3.59 (19,125,000) - - - - - (19,125,000)
Bank overdrafts  14 8.84 (1,728,034) - - - - - (1,728,034)
Term loans 16 5.85 (2,757,650) (898,508) (262,147) (285,430) (323,095) (2,637,339) (7,164,169)
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis of the Group if interest rates at the end of each reporting period 
changed by one hundred (100) basis points with all other variables held constant:

    Group
Profit/(Loss) after tax    2014 2013
      RM RM

- Increase by 1% (2013: 1%)    (250,001) (65,894)
- Decrease by 1% (2013: 1%)    250,001 65,894

The sensitivity is lower in 2014 than in 2013 because of a decrease in outstanding borrowings during the financial 
year. The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on current observable market 
environment.
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32.   SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON REALISED AND UNREALISED PROFITS OR LOSSES

The retained earnings/(accumulated losses) as at the end of the reporting period may be analysed as follows:

    Group Company
     2014 2013 2014 2013
     RM RM RM RM

Total retained earnings/(accumulated losses):      
 
- Realised    16,551,582 17,221,683 (172,876) (215,509)
- Unrealised   (629,177) (1,389,549) - -

      15,922,405 15,832,134 (172,876) (215,509)
Less: Consolidation adjustments  (14,323,960) (14,320,513) - -

Total retained earnings/(accumulated losses)  1,598,445 1,511,621 (172,876) (215,509)
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REGISTERED 
OWNER LOCATION

DESCRIPTION/ 
EXISTING USE

DATE OF 
CERTIFICATE 
OF FITNESS/ 

YEAR OF 
ACqUISITION

APPROXIMATE 
AGE OF 

BUILDING 
YEARS/TENURE

LAND/AREA 
BUILT-UP AREA 

Sq.FT. 

AUDITED NET 
BOOK VALUE 

AS AT
30.6.2014

RM ‘000

SKFI Lot 8804, PN 9630
Mukim Jalan Bakri
District of Muar
Jalan Perindustrian 1
Kawasan Perindustrian
Bukit Bakri, Mukim Bakri
84200 Muar
Johor Darul Takzim

Single storey
factory building
with double storey
office annexe/
Factory and office
building

19/11/2001 13 years/
99 years

leasehold 
expiring on
29.12.2094

88,150 sq. ft./
58,600 sq. ft.

2,452

SKFI Lot 8805, PN 9631
Mukim Jalan Bakri
District of Muar
Jalan Perindustrian 1
Kawasan Perindustrian
Bukit Bakri, Mukim Bakri
84200 Muar
Johor Darul Takzim

Single storey
factory building/
Factory

23/11/2001 13 years/
99 years

leasehold 
expiring on
29.12.2094

96,068 sq. ft./
69,720 sq. ft.

2,721

SKFI HSD 31652, PTD 4447
Mukim Parit Bakar
District of Muar
Johor Darul Takzim

Single storey 
factory building 
with double storey 
office building

7/12/2006 Freehold 112,246 sq. ft./
 69,653 sq. ft.

 7,720 

SK HSD 31653, PTD 4448
Mukim Parit Bakar
District of Muar
Johor Darul Takzim

Double storey
factory building/
Factory building

18/3/2006 Freehold 104,400 sq. ft./
100,800 sq. ft.

4,518

VPM Lot 8789, PN 9612
Mukim Jalan Bakri
District of Muar
Kawasan Perindustrian
Bukit Bakri
Jalan Perindustrian 5
Mukim Bakri
84200 Muar
Johor Darul Takzim

Single storey
factory building
with double storey
office annexe/
Factory and
office building

1/3/1999 15 years/
99 years

leasehold 
expiring on
29.12.2094

87,450 sq. ft./
56,480 sq. ft.

2,361

VPM Lot 8803, PN 9626
Mukim Jalan Bakri
District of Muar
Kawasan Perindustrian
Bukit Bakri
Jalan Perindustrian 1
Mukim Bakri
84200 Muar
Johor Darul Takzim

Single storey
factory building/
Factory building

8/3/2001 13 years/
99 years

leasehold 
expiring on
29.12.2094

88,146 sq. ft./
50,580 sq. ft.

2,485

List oF properties
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REGISTERED 
OWNER LOCATION

DESCRIPTION/ 
EXISTING USE

DATE OF 
CERTIFICATE 
OF FITNESS/ 

YEAR OF 
ACqUISITION

APPROXIMATE 
AGE OF 

BUILDING 
YEARS/TENURE

LAND/AREA 
BUILT-UP AREA 

Sq.FT. 

AUDITED NET 
BOOK VALUE 

AS AT
30.6.2014

RM ‘000

VPM PTD 9765, HSD 20278
Mukim Jorak
District of Muar
PLO 19, Jalan Kempas 2
Pagoh Industrial Estate
Pagoh, Muar 
Johor Darul Takzim

3 factory buildings,
double storey
office block and
other ancillary
buildings

21/2/1995 19 years/
60 years

leasehold 
expiring on
26.06.2055

188,605 sq. ft./
96,194 sq. ft.

2,635

ST Lot Nos.1052 and 11652
GM1138 and 844
Mukim of Serom
District of Muar
State of Johor

3 Sawnmill, 
workshop, office
cum store building,
worker’s quarters

20/8/2006 Freehold 244,702 sq. ft./
21,676 sq. ft.

2,833

List oF properties
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anaLYsis oF sHareHoLDinGs
as at 1 octoBer 2014

Authorised Share Capital : RM200,000,000 

Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital : RM60,000,000 comprising 120,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each

Class of Shares : Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each

Voting Rights  : Every member of the Company, present in person or by proxy, shall have on a show of hands,  
  one (1) vote or on a poll, one (1) vote for each share held

Number of shareholders : 1,683

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Holdings No. of holders Total holdings Percentage (%)

1 - 99 317 13,287 0.01
100 - 1,000 68 36,197 0.03
1,001 - 10,000 727 3,067,910 2.56
10,001 - 100,000 448 15,691,370 13.08
100,001 – 5,999,9991 121 71,091,021 59.24
6,000,0002  and above 2 30,100,215 25.08

TOTAL 1,683 120,000,000 100.00

Notes:
1 Less than 5% of issued shares
2 5% and above of issued shares

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS ACCORDING TO THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS 
(Holding 5% or more of the share capital)
 
Shareholders Direct Indirect
 No. of shares  % No. of shares  %

Genius Success Capital Sdn Bhd 24,000,000 20.00 - -
Koh Kun Chuan 6,100,215 5.08 - -
Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian 10,700,100 8.92 24,000,0001 20.00

1 Substantial interest and deemed interested by virtue of shares held in Genius Success Capital Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of 
the Companies Act, 1965.
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LIST OF THIRTY (30) LARGEST REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS

 Name No. of shares held Percentage (%)

1. Genius Success Capital Sdn Bhd 24,000,000 20.00
   
2. Koh Kun Chuan 6,100,215 5.08
   
3. AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Chua Hauy Seong 5,578,000 4.65
   
4. Tan Lee Chu  4,918,300 4.10
   
5. HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian (MG0195-166) 3,770,000 3.14
   
6. RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian (CEB) 3,500,000 2.92
   
7. Cheong Kok Tong 3,229,300 2.69
   
8. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Ng Hian Chan (Penang-CL) 2,809,400 2.34
   
9. M&A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Tiew Huat Seng (M&A) 2,469,000 2.06
   
10. Ng Hian Chan  2,275,300 1.90
   
11. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Cheong Kok Tong (8121404) 2,258,100 1.88
   
12. Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian  1,930,000 1.61
   
13. RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Lim Sin Kheang (CEB) 1,767,300 1.47
   
14. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Tiew Huat Seng (8089807) 1,523,400 1.27
  
15. AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Loo Yeng Soon  1,343,500 1.12
   
16. Tee Chee Chong  1,155,000 0.96
   
17. RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Tan Lee Chu (CEB) 1,055,600 0.88
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LIST OF THIRTY (30) LARGEST REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS

 Name No. of shares held Percentage (%)

18. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Wee Tiew Toon (8048870) 976,200 0.81
   
19. Teo Hui Hsian  959,533 0.80
   
20. Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian  890,100 0.74
   
21. Public Invest Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Exempt an for Phillip Securities Pte Ltd (Clients) 800,200 0.67
   
22. Yeo Eck Liong 780,000 0.65
   
23. Yap Hong Choon 750,000 0.63
   
24. Lai Liong Fo 650,000 0.54
   
25. Koo Chew Fong 638,800 0.53
   
26. Lee Si Cheng  613,700 0.51
   
27. Ong Gik Lan @ Ong Gaik Lan 612,900 0.51
   
28. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian (8059171) 610,000 0.51
   
29. Teo Kim Choon 550,433 0.46
   
30. Lee Kheng Hee  550,000 0.46
   
 Total 79,064,281 65.89
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DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS ACCORDING TO THE REGISTER OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
 
 Direct Indirect
 No. of shares  % No. of shares  %

Tan Sri Abdul Rahim Bin Mohd Noor - - - -
Koh Kun Chuan 6,100,215 5.08 - -
Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian 10,700,100 8.92 24,000,0001 20.00
Datuk Dr Haris Bin Haji Salleh - - - -
Datuk Tay Puay Chuan - - - -
Dr Tan Chee Huat - - - -
Leou Thiam Lai - - - -
Loo Eng Hua 100,000 0.08 - -

Notes: 
1 Substantial interest and deemed interested by virtue of shares held in Genius Success Capital Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of 

the Companies Act, 1965.

By virtue of his interests in shares in the Company, Low Peng Sian @ Chua Peng Sian, is deemed to have interests in the subsidiaries to 
the extent of the Company’s interests, pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965.

Save as disclosed above, the other Directors did not have any interest in shares in the Company or its related corporations during the 
financial year.

anaLYsis oF sHareHoLDinGs
as at 1 octoBer 2014



SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD
(519103-X)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Number Of Shares Held

* I/We ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

of ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

being a Member/Members of SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD (519103-X), hereby appoint 

___________________________________________________ of _________________________________________________________ 

___________________________ or failing him/her _________________________________________________________________ of 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 or # THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Fourteenth Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held at Classic Hotel, No. 69, Jalan Ali, 84000 Muar, Johor Darul Takzim on Thursday, 27 November 2014 

at 11.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof and to vote as indicated below :- 

Ordinary Resolution For Against
1 To re-elect Datuk Dr Tan Chee Huat as Director (Ordinary Resolution 1)

2 To re-elect Leou Thiam Lai as Director (Ordinary Resolution 2)

3 To re-elect Loo Eng Hua as Director  (Ordinary Resolution 3)

4 To approve the payment of Directors’ fees (Ordinary Resolution 4)

5 To appoint Messrs BDO as Auditors of the Company  (Ordinary Resolution 5)

6 Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D  (Ordinary Resolution 6)

7 Continuing in office as an Independent Non-Executive Director - Datuk Dr Haris Bin  
Hj Salleh (Ordinary Resolution 7)

8 Continuing in office as an Independent Non-Executive Director – Datuk Tay Puay Chuan 
 (Ordinary Resolution 8)

9 Continuing in office as an Independent Non-Executive Director - Dr Tan Chee Huat 
 (Ordinary Resolution 9)

10 To re-appoint Tan Sri Abdul Rahim Bin Mohd Noor as Director pursuant to Section 129 
of the Companies Act, 1965 (Ordinary Resolution 10)

Please indicate with an “X” how you wish your vote to be cast. In the absence of specific directions, your Proxy may vote or abstain at 
his/her discretion.

# If you wish to appoint other person(s) to be your proxy/proxies, kindly delete the words “The Chairman of the Meeting” and insert the 
name(s) of the person(s) desired.

* Delete if not applicable.

The proportions of my/our holding to be represented by my/our proxies are as follows:-
First named proxy           %
Second named proxy   %

 100%

In case of a vote taken by a show of hands, the First Named Proxy shall vote on my/our behalf.

Dated this .....................day of ….….…..................... 2014 ………….…….……….……….......................................
 Signature /Common Seal of member
Notes:

(1) A member may appoint only one (1) proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is not a member, he need not 
be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy.

(2) Where a Member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 it may appoint only one (1) proxy in respect 
of each Securities Account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said Securities Account.

(3) Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities accounts 
(“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. If a Member 
appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holding to be represented by each proxy.

(4) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing executed under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, 
either under the corporation’s seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

(5) The instrument appointing a proxy, with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified or office copy of such power or authority, 
shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot PTD 6019 (Lot 8804), Jalan Perindustrian 1, Kawasan Perindustrian Bukit Bakri, Mukim Bakri, 84200 Muar, Johor 
Darul Takzim not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting as the case may be.

(6) The Date of Record of Depositors for the purpose of determining Members’ entitlement to attend, vote and speak at the Meeting is 21 November 2014.

proXY ForM
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The Company Secretary

SERN KOU RESOURCES BERHAD
Lot PTD 6019 (Lot 8804), Jalan Perindustrian 1,

Kawasan Perindustrian Bukit Bakri, Mukim Bakri,
84200 Muar, Johor Darul Takzim.
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